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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirty Eighth Annual General Meeting of the members of Tivoli 
Construction Limited will be held on Monday, the 30th day of September, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. at 4,h 
Floor, Raheja Chambers, Linking Road & Main Avenue, Santacmz - (West), Mumbai - 400054, to 
transact the following business:

l) To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Company as at March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of Board of 
Directors and Statutory Auditors thereon.

2) To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Anita Raheja (DIN: 00306794) Director, who retires at 
the 38'h Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment as 
Director.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Date taO"1 August, 2024 Sd/-
Tanuja Sharraa

Company Secretary & Compliance OfficerPlace: Mumbai

BRIEF RESUME OF DIRECTOR SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AT 
THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SECRETARIAL 
STANDARDS (“SS-2n) AND REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS 
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015:

MRS. ANITA DEEPAK RAHEJA (DIN 00306794) 
Non-Executive Director since 04/09/2017

Mrs. Anita Raheja, (Director DIN: 00306794) aged 65 years, is an entrepreneur and a dynamic 
professional. She is on the Board of the Company since the year 2017. She has wide range of 
experience in real estate, construction and hospitality sector. She is a director in various companies 
which are into Real Estate Development business.

Skills and attributes which supports strategy and long-term success:

Her experience in the Real Estate Development business and various related sectors is vast as she has 
been in this field for many years and holds directorship in various such companies Mrs. Anita Raheja 
may be deemed to be concerned and interested to the extent of 50030 equity shares held by her in the 
Company.

Mrs. Anita Raheja has attended 5 Board meetings during the year ended 31 March, 2024.

NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ALSO 

ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND, AND ON A POLL, TO VOTE
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INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND SUCH PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER 
OF THE COMPANY.

2. Proxies, if any, in order to be effective, must be received at the Company’s Registered Office 
not later than 48 (Forty Eight) hours before the time fixed for holding the meeting. Proxies 
submitted on behalf of the companies, etc., must be supported by appropriate 
resolution/authority, as applicable. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time 
fixed for the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a 
member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours 
of the Company, provided not less than three days of notice in writing is given to the 
Company.

3. A person can act as a proxy on behalf of not more than fifty members holding in the 
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting 
rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company 
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such person shall not act as a 
proxy for any other person or shareholder.

4. Corporate Members are requested to send a duly certified true copy of the Board Resolution 
authorizing their representative to attend and vote at the Meeting on the email id of the 
Company -tivoliconstruction@vahoo.co.in

5. Any member proposing to seek any clarification on the accounts, is requested to send the 
queries to the Company at its registered office at least seven days prior to the date of Annual 
General Meeting to enable the management to compile the relevant information to reply the 
same in the meeting.

6. The Register of the Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain 
closed from Tuesday, September 24, 2024 to Monday, September 30, 2024 (Both days 
inclusive).

7. Members/Proxies are requested to bring attendance slip to the meeting.

8. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Statement, are open for 
inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days, 
except Saturdays and Sundays, during business hours, up to the date of the Meeting.

9. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to write their Client ID and 
DP ID and those who hold in physical form are requested to write their folio number in the 
attendance slip.

10. In case of Joint Holders attending the meeting, the Member whose name appears as the First 
holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled 
to vote.

11. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 
under section 170 of the Act and the Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors 
are interested maintained under section 189 of the Act will be available during the meeting for 
inspection to the Members.
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12. Nomination facility for shares is available for Members

13. Members who would like to receive notices, letters, annual reports, documents and any other 
correspondence by electronic mode are requested to register their email address with the 
Company.

14. The Company is providing facility for voting by electronic means and the business may be 
transacted through e-voting.

15. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Act, 
if any, the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Members are provided with the 
facility to cast their vote electronically on all resolutions set forth in this Notice from a place 
other than the venue of the meeting (“remote e-voting”).

16. Pursuant to SEBI Notification dated June 8, 2018, on Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth Amendment) Regulations, 2018 
and amendments thereof. Listed Companies and their Registrars and Transfer Agents (RTAs) 
have been advised to ensure that shares which are lodged for transfer are mandatorily in 
dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019. The Shareholders holding shares in 
physical mode are advised to dematerialize their shares at the earliest in order to ensure 
smooth transfer of shares if they propose to do so in future. In case the shareholders have any 
queries or need any assistance in regard to dematerialization, they are requested to contact the 
Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent - M/s. Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited 
or the Company at tivoliconstruction@vahoo.cojn.

17. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of members / list of Beneficial Owners as 
on Monday, 23''' September 2024 (“cut-off date”) are entitled to vote on the Resolutions set 
forth in this Notice.

18. Electronic copy of the Notice , for the AGM and the Annual Report for the financial year 
(“FY”) 2023-24 are being sent to all the Members whose e-mail ids are registered with the 
Company/Depository Participant(s).TTie Notice and the Annual Report are also available on 
the Company’s website - www.tivoliconstruction.in for download and at the websites of 
the BSE Ltd where the Company’s shares are listed. The AGM Notice is also disseminated on 
the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL)

19. Members who have acquired shares after the dispatch of the Annual Report and before the 
book closure and cut-off date may approach the Company / RTA for issuance of the User ID 
and password for exercising their right to vote by electronic means.

20. Members are requested to intimate immediately any change in their name, postal address, 
email address, telephone/ mobile number, Permanent Account Number (PAN), mandates, 
nominations, power of attorney, bank details such as name of the bank and branch details, 
Bank Account Number, MICR code, IFSC code, etc., as follows:
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i) For shares held in electronic form: to their Depository Participants (DPs).

ii) For shares held in physical form: to the Company/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent in 
prescribed Form ISR-1 and other forms pursuant to SEB1 Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/ 
MIRSD_RTAMB/P/ CIR/2021/655 dated Novembers, 2021.

21. SEBI vide circular No. SEBI/HO/ MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-l/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 
2023 had mandated the physical shareholders to furnish their PAN, KYC and nomination 
details by October 1, 2023.

In case a holder of physical securities has failed to furnish PAN and KYC details before 
October 1, 2023, RTA is obligated to freeze such folios. The securities in the frozen folios 
shall be eligible to receive payments (including dividend) and lodge grievances only after 
furnishing the complete documents to the Company’s RTA, Satellite Corporate Services 
Private Limited at A-106-107, Dattani Plaza, East West Indl. Compound, Andheri Kurla - 
Road, Nr Safed Pool, Sakinaka, Mumbai - 400 072.

22. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint 
holding in the same order of names are requested to send the share certificates to the Registrar 
and Share Transfer Agent of the Company for consolidation of the folios along with the 
requisite KYC documents for consolidating the holdings in one folio. Requests for 
consolidation of share certificates shall be processed in dematerialised form.

23. The facility for voting through Ballot Paper will be made available at the AGM and Members 
attending the Meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be 
eligible to vote at the Meeting.

24. Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the Meeting may also attend 
the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

25. The Company has appointed Ms. Hansa Gaggar, Practicing Company Secretary Mumbai, as 
the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the entire e-voting process, in a fair and transparent manner.

26. The results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report shall be placed on the Company's 
website and on. the website of NSDL within three days of the passing of the resolutions at the 
38th AGM of the Company on September 30, 2024 and communicated to the Stock 
Exchange, where the shares of the Company are listed

27. A route map to reach the venue of the Meeting to be attached along with this Notice in 
accordance with Clause No. 1.2.4 of the Secretarial Standard-2 on “General Meetings” is 
attached.

28. The members attending the meeting shall carry any one of their Identity proofs so as to get 
entry in the Venue.

Voting through electronic means

I. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and
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Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and Regulation 44 of the 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 20l5,the Company 
is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to vote on resolutions 
proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means 
and the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting 
the votes by the members using an electronic voting system from a place other than 
venue of the AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities 
Depository Limited (NSDL).

II. The Company has approached NSDL for providing e-voting services through their e- 
voting platform. In this regard, your Demat Account/Folio Number has been enrolled by 
the Company for your participation in e-voting on resolutions placed by the Company on 
e-Voting system

III. The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the 
members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be 
able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

IV. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also 
attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

V. The remote e-voting period commences on Friday, 27'h September, 2024 at 9.00 a.m. 
and ends on Sunday, 29,l, September, 2024 at 5:00 p.m. During this period, members 
of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on 
the cut-off date 23rd September, 2024 may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote 
on a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it 
subsequently.

The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity 
share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 23ld September, 2024. Any 
person, who acquires shares of the Company and becomes a member of the Company 
after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 
2024, may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
or tivoliconstruction@,vahoo.co.in / service@satellitecorporate.com

VI.

VII. The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS 
UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, 27,l‘ September, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends 
on Sunday, 29"1 September, 2024 at 5:00 P.M The remote e-voting module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the 
Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. 23rd 
September, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders
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shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date, being 23rd September, 2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of "Two Steps ” which are 
mentioned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9. 2020 on e-Votine facility provided by Listed
Companies. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat
accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given
below:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL.

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website 
of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services 
home page click on the "Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section , this will prompt you to enter your existing 
User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 
services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and 
you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 
company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period If you are not registered for 
IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register Online 

Portal”
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectRe
for IDeAS click ator

g.isp

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web 
browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
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Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e- 
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected 
to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e- 
Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Shareholders/Members can also 
download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 
facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below 
for seamless voting experience.

3. •

NSDL Mobile App is available on 

^ App Store & Google Play

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest 
facility, can login through their existing user id and 
password. Option will be made available to reach e- 
Voting page without any further authentication. The 
users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit 
CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your 
existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies 
where the evoting is in progress as per the 
information provided by company. On clicking the 
evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting 
page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, 
there is also links provided to access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit
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the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 
option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting 
page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN 
No. from a e-Voting link available on 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 
Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. 
After successful authentication, user will be able to 
see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 
account through your Depository Participant registered with 
NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility, upon logging in, you will 
be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you 
will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after 
successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting 
feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider 
i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use
Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.____________________

Helpdesk detailsLogin type
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at 
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helDdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no. 1800-21-099H
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B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: https://www.evotine.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 
and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.mdl. com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to 
Step2i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 
(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 
Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** 
and Client ID is 12****** then your user. 
ID is IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
,2************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001***
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5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below: 
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 
retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 
system will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?
If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 
company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email 
ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 
the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 
password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 
shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 
your ‘initial password’.
If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below
in process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

(i)

00

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 
• forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/PasswordTYIf you are holding shares in your 
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 
request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio 
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 
on the check box.

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.
9. After you click on the “Login” button. Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast vour vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?
1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in 

which you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.
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2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e- 
Voting period.

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 
“Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option 
on the confirmation page.

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your 
vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to 
send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority 
letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who 
are authorized to-vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pcshansagaggar@gmail.com 
with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than 
individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of 
Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / 
Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an 
event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the 
password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download 
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to 
Mr. Sagar S. Gudhate at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories 
for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the 
resolutions set out in this notice:
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1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of 
shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self 
attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to tivoliconstruction@vahoo.co.in

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated 
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to tivoliconstruction@vahoo.co.in .If you are 
an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to 
refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned 
documents.

4. In terms of SEB1 circular dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting facility provided bv
Listed Companies. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are
allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and
Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number
and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Form No. MGT-ll
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

38th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Tivoli Construction Limited to be held 
Monday 30,h September, 2024 at 11.00 am

ON
Name of the Company 
Registered office

L45200MH1985PLC037365 
Tivoli Construction Limited
Raheja Chambers, 4th Floor Linking Road &Main Avenue, 
Santacruz (West),Mumbai-400054

Name of the member (s):

Registered address:

E-mail Id:

Folio No/Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member (s) of 
appoint:

shares of the above named company, hereby

1. Name: Mr/Ms. E-mail Id:
Address:

Signature: or failing him

2. Name: Mr/Ms. E-mail Id:
Address:

Signature: or failing him

3. Name: Mr/Ms. E-mail Id:
Address:

Signature:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday the 30lh day of September 2024 at 11:00 AM at
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ihe registered office of the Company at Mumbai, and any adjournment thereof in respect of such 
resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution Particulars Voting
No.

Against AbstainFor
Ordinary Business

To adopt Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31SI 
March. 2024

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Anita Deepak Raheja (DIN: 
00306794) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers herself 
for re-appointment

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

Signed this day of .2024

Signature of Member: Signature of Proxy:

Note:
1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the 

Registered Office of the Company,, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the 
Meeting.
It is optional to indicate your preference. If you leave the for, against or abstain column blank 
against any or all resolutions, your proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she may 
deem appropriate.

2.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
(To be presented at the entrance)

38th Annual General Meeting on Monday, 30lh September, 2024 at 11.00 am at Raheja 
Chambers, 4th Floor Linking Road &Main Avenue, Santacruz (West), Mumbai-400054

Folio No. / DPID No.:

Client ID:

Name of the Member: Signature:

Name of the Proxy-holder: Signature:

Note:
I. Only Member / Proxy-Holder can attend the Meeting.
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Form No. MGT-12 Polliog Paper

[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

BALLOT PAPER
SNo Particulars Details

Name of the first named1.
Shareholder (In Block Letters)
Postal address2.

3. Registered Folio No./ ‘Client ID No. 
(‘applicable to investors holding 
shares in dematerialized form)

4. Class of Share Equity Shares
5. Number of Shares held
[/We hereby exercise my/our vote in respect of the Resolution^) to be passed for the business stated in the 
Notice of 38lh Annual General Meeting of the Company to beheld on Monday, SO01 September, 2024 at 
11.00 a.m. by conveying my/our assent or dissent to the said Resolution(s) by placing the tick mark at the 
appropriate box below:
No. Item No. No. of Shares 

held by me
I assent to the 
resolution

1 dissent from 
the resolution

Special Business

1. To adopt Audited Financial Statements for the year 
ended 3 lfl March, 2024

l. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Anita 
Deepak Raheja (DIN: 00306794) who retires by 
rotation and being eligible offers herself for re­
appointment

Place:

Date: (Signature of the shareholder*)

(*as per Company records)
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ROUTE MAP

(Sanlacruz Station to Raheja Chambers)
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To The Members,
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 
MumbaL

The Directors present the 38,h Annual Report of Tivoli Construction Limited (the Company) 
along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The 
consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been referred to wherever 
required.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (Standalone)
Amount in 000

Particulars
2023-2024 2022-2023

Total Income for the year
1400.37 50.38

Total Expenditure for the year
1040.80 1095.43

Profit/(Loss) for the year before Taxation 359.57 (1045.05)

Less: Provision for Current Taxation
93.49

Less: Current Tax (relating to prior year)

Profit/(Loss) after taxation
266.08 (1045.05)

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

Total comprehensive income for the period 266.08 (1045.05)

Add: Surplus in Profit & Loss account brought 
forward from previous year

(279.74) 765.31

Less: Transfer to General Reserve

Balance carried to the Balance Sheet (13.66) (279.74)

2. OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY:

During the year under review, the Company has earned a profit of Rs.2,66,079 as compared 
to the loss of the previous of Rs. 10,45,050.

3. RESERVES:

In order to conserve resources for the future purpose, the Company has not transferred any 
amounts to Reserves for the financial year 2023-2024.
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4. DIVIPEND:

In order to conserve resources for the future purpose, the Directors do notrecommend any 
dividend for the year ended March 31,2024.

5. SHARE CAPITAL:

The paid-up equity share capital of the Company was Rs. 50 lakhs as on SI51 March, 2024. 
There has been no change in the capital structure of your Company.

6. PUBLIC DEPOSITS:

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public covered under section 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during the 
year under review.

7. INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND:

During the year, there were no amounts to be transferred to Investor Education and Protection 
Fund.

8. SUBSIDIARY. ASSOCIATE AND JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES:

The Company has one Subsidiary Company viz. Victoria Investments Company Limited as 
on 31s1 March, 2024. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 
2013, a statement containing salient features of financial statements of its subsidiary in Form 
AOC- 1 is attached to the consolidated financial statement and therefore not repeated in this 
Report to avoid duplication.

9. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The audited consolidated financial statements of the Company, and its Subsidiary prepared in 
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the applicable Accounting Standards form part 
of this Annual Report.

10. DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:

I'ShiNb; ' h
T.

Mr. Rakesh Desai1. Director
Director (ceased to be a director w.e.f.29,h 

August, 2024 due to death)
Mr. Bulchand G. Ahuja2

J Mr. Sagar Rupani Director
Mrs. Anita Raheja4 Director

CS & Compliance Officer (till 3rd January, 2024)Mrs. Pinal R. Parikh5

There were no changes in the Board of Directors of the Company during the year.
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During the year under review, Mrs. Pinal R. Parekh resigned as the Company Secretary and 
the Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 3 rd January, 2024.
Post Completion of the Financial year, Ms. Tanuja Sharma has been appointed as the 
Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of the Company w.e.f. 30lh April, 2024.

Your directors express their profound grief on the demise of Mr. Bulchand Ahuja, Non­
executive Director of the Company since 2013. He ceased to be a director of the Company 
w.e.f. 29th August, 2024. The Board places on record its sincere appreciation for the 
invaluable guidance provided by him during his tenure as a director of the Company.

11. A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD
TO INTEGRITY. EXPERTISE AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE
PROFICIENCY^ OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINTED
DURING THE YEAR:

The Company has not appointed any Independent Director during the year under review, 
hence does not comment on it.

12. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 149 t6t
OF COMPANIES ACT. 2013:

The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors under Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 confirming their independence vis-a-vis the Company.

13. RETIREMENT BY ROTATION:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mrs. Anita 
Deepak Raheja is liable to retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

Brief profile of the proposed appointee together with other disclosures in terms of Regulation 
36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are 
mentioned in the Notice which are part of this Annual Report.

14. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD:

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI LODR and the 
Policy framed by the Board for Performance Evaluation, the Board has carried out the annual 
performance evaluation of its own performance, of the Directors individually as well as the 
evaluation of the working of its committees. The performance evaluation of the Independent 
Directors was carried out by the entire Board with regard to performance and fulfilment of 
the independence criteria as specified in the regulations and their independence from the 
management. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent 
Directors was carried out by the Independent Directors.
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A structured questionnaire was prepared covering various aspects such as attendance at the 
meetings, participation and contribution, teamwork, discussions at the Board/Committee 
Meetings, understanding of the business of the Company, strategy and quality of decision 
making, etc. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

15. NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:

The Board of Directors of the Company met Five (5) times during the financial year 2023- 
2024 viz:

(1) 25/05/2023 (2) 09/08/2023 (3) 06/09/2023 (4) 08/11/2023 (5) 23/01/2024.

■ Sr. No.!: I ' Dale of Meetings , few#
25/05/20231.
09/08/20232.

3. 06/09/2023
4. 08/11/2023
5. 23/01/2024

16. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD :

The Company has several Committees which have been constituted in compliance with the 
requirements of the relevant provisions of applicable laws and statutes.

The Company has following Committees of the Board comprising of Directors of the 
Company:

a. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

The Audit Committee was constituted pursuant to the provisions of Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the Audit Committee is in conformity with the 
provisions of the said section. The Audit Committee comprises of:

1. Mr. Rakesh Desai
2. Mrs. Anita Raheja
3. Mr. Sagar Rupani

- Chairman
- Member
- Member

The Audit Committee met Four times during the year viz. (1) 25/05/2023 (2) 09/08/2023 (3) 
08/11/2023 (4) 23/01/2024.

b. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee was constituted pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the Nomination & 
Remuneration Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the said section. The 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee comprises of:
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1. Mrs. Anita Raheja 
Mr. Rakesh Desai 
Mr. Sagar Rupani

- Chairman
- Member
- Member

2.
3.

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee met once during the year on 26/02/2024.

c. STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE:

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee was constituted pursuant to the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship 
Committee is in conformity with the provisions of the said section. The Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee comprises of:

1. Mr. Rakesh Desai 
Mrs. Anita Raheja 
Mr. Sagar Rupani

- Chairman
- Member
- Member

2.
3.

During the financial year 2023-2024, no complaints were received from shareholders. 
Moreover, there were no complaints pending in the beginning of the financial year and none 
were pending at the close of the financial year ended 31st March, 2024.
The Stakeholders Relationship Committee met thrice during the year viz (1) 23/05/2023. 
(2) 29/12/2023 (3)26/02/2024.

17. INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING:

Committee of Independent Directors comprises of Mr. Rakesh Desai (Chairman of the 
Committee) and Mr. Sagar Rupani (Member). During the year under review, the Independent 
Directors met on 26'h February, 2024, inter aha, to discuss:

1) Evaluation of the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of 
Directors as a whole.

2) Evaluation of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between 
the Management and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and 
reasonably perform their duties.

18. VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY:

The Company has established a vigil mechanism by adopting a Whistle Blower Policy to 
report concerns about illegal or unethical practices, if any. In accordance with the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014, every listed Company is required to have a Vigil Mechanism for the Directors 
and employees to report their genuine concerns and grievances. Keeping these provisions in 
mind, the Company has put in place a Whistle Blower Policy. The Audit Committee of 
Directors is entrusted with the responsibility to oversee the Vigil Mechanism. During the 
year, no personnel were denied access to the Audit Committee.
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19. POLICY ON PRESERVATION OF DOCUMENTS:

In accordance with Regulation 9 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Company has 
framed a Policy on preservation of documents approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. The Policy is intended to define preservation of documents and to provide 
guidance to the Executives and employees working in the Company to make decisions that 
may have an impact on the operations of the Company. It not only covers the various aspects 
on preservation of the documents, but also the safe disposal/destruction of the documents.

20. INSIDER TRADING CODE:

In compliance with the SEBI Regulations on prohibition of insider trading, the Company has 
adopted the Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in securities of the Company, 
to regulate, monitor and report trading by insiders, designated Persons and such other persons 
to whom this Code is applicable.

21. PREVENTIO N OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT:

The Company offers equal employment opportunity and is committed to creating a healthy 
working environment that enables employees to work without fear of prejudice, gender bias 
and sexual harassment. The Company has also framed a policy on Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment of Women at workplace. As per the requirement of the Sexual harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules made 
thereunder, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee to inquire into 
complaints of sexual harassment and recommend appropriate action.

During the financial year 2023-2024, no complaints were received. Your directors further 
state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

No. of Complaints received Nil
No. of Complaints disposed off Nil

22. LOANS. GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186;

During the year under review, the Company has not given any new loans or guarantees or 
made any fresh investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

There are no contracts or arrangements with Related Parties during the Financial Year 2023- 
2024 as enumerated under Section 188(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence the Board 
does not comment on this point.
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24. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
In terras of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the 

Companies (Particulars of Employee) Rules, 1975, names and other particulars of the 
employees are not given as none of the employee is covered under the said provisions of the 
Act.

25. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation to the audited financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2024, the Board of Directors 
hereby confirms that:
a. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been 

followed and there are no material departures;

b. such accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and the Directors 
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 st March, 2024 and of the loss of 
the Company for the year;

c. proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records 
in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. the annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. internal financial controls have been laid down to be followed by the Company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively;

f. proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
.applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively;

26. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION. FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

a. As the Company does not have any manufacturing activities, particulars required to be 
disclosed with respect to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in terms 
of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 are not applicable and hence not given.

b. During the year under review, the foreign exchange outgo / provision is Nil and the 
foreign exchange inflow is Nil (previous year Nil).
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27. DISCLOSURE AS TO WHETHER MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS
SPECIFIED BY THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT UNDER SUB-SECTION (1)
OF SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT. 2013. IS REQUIRED BY THE
COMPANY AND ACCORDINGLY WHETHER SUCH ACCOUNTS AND
RECORDS ARE MADE AND MAINTAINED:

Not applicable to the Company.

28. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review as stipulated 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is presented 
in a separate section forming part of this report.

29. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS:

The Company has established set of standards, processes and structure which enables it to 
implement adequate internal financial controls and that the same are operating effectively. 
The internal financial controls of the Company are commensurate with its size and the nature 
of its operations. The Company has well defined delegation of authority limits for approving 
revenue as well as expenditures.

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established 
and maintained by the Company, the work done by the Internal, Statutory and Secretarial 
Auditors and the reviews of the Management and the relevant Board Committees, including 
the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial 
controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2023-2024.

30. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED
FROM APRIL 01.2023 TO THE DATE OF THE REPORT:

There are no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the 
company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to 
which the financial statements relate and the date of this report.

31. AUDITORS:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. N. S. Shetty & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm 
Registration No. 110101W), the Statutory Auditors of the Company have been appointed for 
a term of 5 years (i.e. from the conclusion of the 35th Annual General Meeting until the 
conclusion of the 40th Annual General Meeting to be held in 2026).
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32. QUALIFICATIONS OF AUDITORS ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The report given by the Auditors on the financial statements of the Company are part of the 
Annual Report. There is no qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer given by 
the Auditors in their Report.

33. DEMATERIALIZATION OF SHARES:

The Company's shares are listed on BSE Limited and the Company’s Registrar and Share 
Transfer Agents have connectivity with National Securities Depository Ltd. & Central 
Depository Services (India) Ltd. The ISIN of the Company is INE747V01014. As on March 
31, 2024, 3,14,830 equity shares representing 62.97% of the total shares have been 
dematerial ized.

34. COMPANY’S WFBSITF:

The Company has its website namely www.tivoliconstruction.in. The website provides 
detailed information about the Quarterly Results, Annual Reports and Shareholding patterns 
and also various policies are placed on the website of the Company and the same are updated 
periodically.

35. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

Pursuant to Section 92 (3) read with Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act as amended, the Annual 
Return as on March 31, 2024 is available on the Company’s website
www.tivoliconstruction.in and the web link for the same is https://tivoliconstruction.in/wp- 
content/uDloads/2024/09/MGT-9 Tivoli2023-24.pdf

36. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

The Company has designated tivoliconstruction@vahoo.co.in as the email id for the purpose 
of registering complaints by investors and displayed the same on the website of the 
Company.

37. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT:

The Company had appointed CS Jignesh Makwana, Practising Company Secretary, Mumbai, 
to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. The following are the qualifications given in the report 
with its explanation given by the Board:

In terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the 
Company was required to have certain Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and regulation 
33(2)(a) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the chief executive officer and chief financial 
officer of the listed entity shall certify that the financial results do not contain any false or

a.
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misleading statement or figures and do not omit any material fact which may make the 
statements or figures contained therein misleading (CEO and CFO Certification). After 
resignation of former Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Conrpany, the Company has been 
unable to appoint a CFO in terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 
2013 and has not obtained CEO and CFO Certification in terms of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015.

In terms of the regulation 6 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company was required to appoint Compliance Officer 
within 3 months from the resignation of Company Secretary of Company on 03/01/2024, the 
Company has appointed Director, who was not qualified company secretary as the compliance 
officer and he has certified and issued compliance certificate for quarter ended December 2023 
and March 2024for the compliance requirement of Structured Digital Database for handling 
unpublished price-sensitive injbrmation, pursuant to provisions of Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) 
of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

b.

Explanation:

a. Due to the small size of the operations of the Company, and since the Company is 
a loss making Company, despite best efforts, the Company is not able to find a 
suitable person for the post of CFO, at a reasonable remuneration after the 
resignation of the former CFO. Therefore, the Company was unable to obtain the 
CEO and CFO Certification in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The 
Company is hopeful of finding a suitable candidate at the earliest.

b. Due to the small size of the operations of the Company, and since the Company is 
a loss-making Company, the Company was not able to find a suitable person for 
the post of Company Secretaiy and Compliance Officer at a reasonable 
remuneration after the resignation of the former CS even after best efforts. 
However, the Company has appointed Company Secretary and Compliance 
officer w.e.f. 30th April, 2024, but in the interim the Company had to appoint a 
Director to oversee all the compliances ,with all the rules, regulations and filings 
with Stock Exchange.

The report of the Secretarial Auditor in Form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure I.

38. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS:

During the year under review, neither the Statutory Auditors nor the Secretarial Auditor has 
reported to the Audit Committee, under Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013, any 
instances of fraud committed against the Company by its officers or employees, the details of 
which need to be mentioned in the Board’s Report.

39. DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER
THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE. 2016

There is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

30



jr&t&WXi*" 
1 ' ’

'j

TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 
CIN: L45200MH1985PLC037365

40. ONE-TIME SETTLEMENT WITH ANY BANK OR FINANCIAL
INSTITUTION:

There was no instance of one-time settlement with any Bank or Financial Institution.

41. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSRt:

Your Company does not fulfil the criteria mentioned under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 
2013, for applicability of the provisions of Corporate Social Responsibility. Hence, your 
Company is not required to constitute CSR Committee nor does it have to comply with other 
provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate 
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

42, RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE:

All material risks faced by the Company are identified and assessed. For each of the risks 
identified, corresponding controls are assessed and procedures are put in place for monitoring, 
mitigating and reporting risk on a periodic basis.

The provisions of Regulation 21 of SEB1 (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are not applicable to the 
Company. Hence the Risk Management Committee has not been formed.

43. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

As per SEB1 (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the paid-up 
equity share capital of your Company is less than Rs. 10 crores and Net worth is less than Rs. 
25 crores, hence as per Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, compliance with the provisions of Regulation 27 i.e. 
Corporate Governance is not applicable to your Company.

44. SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:

The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to 
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly 
followed by the Company.

45. REGISTER & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT:

The Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company:
Satellite Corporate Services Private Limited,
Contact person: Mr. Michael Monteiro
Office No, 106 & 107, Dattani Plaza, East West Compound, Andheri Kurla Road, Safedpul, 
Sakinaka, Mumbai - 400072.
Ph: 022 28520461/62 Email Id: service@satellitecorporate.com
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46. GENERAL:

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following 
items as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under 
any scheme.

4. No significant or materia! orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

47. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS:

Your Directors wish to convey their gratitude and place on record their sincere appreciation 
of the assistance and co-operation that the Company has been receiving from its employees 
and also from the Banks.

Your Directors would also like to thank the customers, suppliers and shareholders for their 
continued support and co-operation.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED

Sd/- Sd/-
Anita Raheja 
Director 
DIN:00306794

Rakesh Desai 
Director 

DIN: 00152982

Place: Mumbai 
Date: 30th August, 2024

Registered Office:
4th Floor, Raheja Chambers,
Linking Road & Main Avenue, 
Santacruz - (West),
Mumbai — 400 054 
Contact: 022 - 6769 4400/4444 
Website: vvww.tivoliconstruction.in 
Email: tivoliconstruction@vahoo.co.in
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Macroeconomic Review:
India took a big economic leap this year: The country ended fiscal year 2023 to 2024 with a 
big bang, surpassing all market estimates of GDP, with 8.15% year-over-year (YoY) growth. 
For three consecutive years, India’s economy has exceeded growth expectations (averaging 
8.3% annual growth over this period) despite global uncertainties, driven by strong domestic 
demand and continuous government efforts toward reforms and capital expenditure. 
Optimism prevails, as highlighted by a Deloitte pre-budget expectation survey, which shows 
high confidence among industry leaders in India’s continued robust growth. With prevalent 
signs of the rural economy rebounding, strong growth in manufacturing, robust bank balance 
sheets and credit growth, and stronger exports in services and high-value manufacturing, 
there is confidence that India’s underlying potential will help it outpace growth in the rest of 
the world. The growth momentum is expected to continue, with a projected annual GDP 
growth rate of 7.0% to 7.2% in fiscal 2024 to 2025 and 6.7% to 7.3% in the following fiscal 
year. Inflation remained at 5.4 percent in F.Y.2023-24.

Firstly, private consumption spending fared better last year than reported earlier. There were 
upward revisions to the third-quarter data, suggesting consumers spent more generously in 
the quarter of festivals and during the Cricket World Cup than previously believed. Third- 
quarter GDP growth was revised to 8.6%, up from the earlier estimate of 8.4%, on the back 
of a 50-basis point upward revision of private consumption spending. That said, private 
consumption growth remained capped at 4.03% over fiscal 2023 to 2024 owing to modest 
growth in the agriculture sector and persistent inflation that weighed on rural demand.

Secondly, Indian exports surged by an impressive 8.1% YoY in the fourth quarter—the 
highest this fiscal year. Merchandise exports improved remarkably that quarter (even though 
the quarter’s performance could not prevent annual merchandise export growth from 
contracting). Notably, high-value manufactured goods like pharmaceuticals, chemicals, 
engineering products, and electronics achieved record export levels this quarter, propelling 
overall growth in merchandise exports in the high value-added segment. This positive trend 
bodes well for India as it aims to strengthen its integration into the global value chain and 
increase its exports to US$2 trillion over the next six years. Growth in the traditional basket 
of exports, however, continued to decline.

The growth range predicted for next year is higher, as these uncertainties can swing economic 
activities quite distinctly. That said, we will continue to see the difference between actual 
GDP and no-COVID-19 levels progressively narrowing as growth picks up pace.

India's Construction and Infrastructure Sector

India's construction and infrastructure sector is expected to grow by 11.2% to reach INR 
25,316 billion in 2024. The growth momentum is expected to continue over the forecast 
period, recording a CAGR of 9.4% during 2024-2028. The construction output in India is 
expected to reach INR 36,221.6 billion by 2028. Here are some key drivers of growth in this 
sector:

33



TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 
CIN: L45200MH1985PLC037365

-Government Initiatives: The government's infrastructure push, coupled with the burgeoning 
housing market, will drive the industry growth over the medium term.

- Rapid Urbanization: Rapid urbanization is driving the market, with the government 
allocating 3.3% of GDP to the infrastructure sector in FY 2024.

- Foreign Direct Investments: Surge in foreign direct investments is driving the market, with 
the sector being one of the leading recipients of foreign direct investment (FDI)

- New Projects: Several new projects have been announced, including the GIFT City in 
Gujarat, the Surat DREAM City, and the Dholera SIR.

- Transportation Infrastructure: The government has set ambitious goals, aiming to construct 
a 2 lakh-km national highway network by 2025, expand airports to 220, operationalize 23 
waterways by 2030, and establish 35 Multi-Modal Logistics Parks (MMLPs).

In Interim Budget 2024-25, capital investment outlay for infrastructure has been increased by 
ll.l% to Rs. 11.11 lakh crore (US$ 133.86 billion), which would be 3.4 % of GDP. As per 
the Interim Budget 2023-24, a capital outlay of Rs. 2.55 lakh crore (US$ 30.72 billion) has 
been made for the Railways, an increase of 5.8% over the previous year. Starting with 6,835 
projects, the NIP project count now stands at 9,142 covering 34 sub-sectors, as per news 
reports. Under the initiative, 2476 projects are under the development phase with an 
estimated investment of US$ 1.9 trillion. Nearly half of the under-development projects are in 
the transportation sector, and 3,906 are in the roads and bridges sub-sector.. India's logistics 
market is estimated to be US$ 317.26 billion in 2024 and is expected to reach US$ 484.43 
billion by 2029, growing at a CAGR of 8.8%. India intends to raise its ranking in the 
Logistics Performance Index to 25 and bring down the logistics cost from 14% to 8% of 
GDP, leading to a reduction of approximately 40%, within the next five years. In December 
2023, AA1 and other Airport Developers have targeted capital outlay of approximately Rs. 
98,000 crore (US$ 11.8 billion) in airport sector in the next five years for expansion and 
modification of existing terminals, new terminals and strengthening of runways, among other 
activities.

India currently has the fifth-largest metro network in the world and will soon overtake 
advanced economies such as Japan and South Korea to become the third-largest network. 
Metro rail network reached 810 kms and is operational in 20 cities. In the last 10 years, 697 
km have been added to Metro Rail Network across the country. In 2024, about 945 km of 
metro rail lines are operational in 21 cities and 919 km is under construction in 26 different 
cities. At almost 20 kms, Mumbai monorail is the third largest route in the world after China 
with 98 kms and Japan with 28 kms. FDI in construction development (townships, housing, 
built-up infrastructure and construction development projects) and construction 
(infrastructure) activity sectors stood at US$ 26.61 billion and US$ 33.91 billion, 
respectively, between April 2000-March 2024. Indian logistics market is estimated to touch 
US$ 320 billion by 2025. The overall infrastructure capex is estimated to grow at a CAGR of 
11.4% over 2021-26 driven by spending on water supply, transport, and urban infrastructure. 
Investment in infrastructure contributed around 5% of the GDP in the tenth five-year plan as 
against 9% in the eleventh five-year plan. Further, US$ 1 trillion investment in infrastructure 
was proposed by the India’s planning commission during the I2th five-year plan, with 40% 
of the funds coming from the private sector.
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Opportunities and threats

As India awaits policy reforms to pick up speed, your Company firmly believes that the 
demand for Real Estate in a country like India should remain strong in the medium to long 
term. Your Company’s well accepted brand, contemporary architecture, well-designed 
projects in strategic locations, strong balance sheet, and stable financial performance even in 
testing times make it a preferred choice for customers and shareholders. Your company is 
ideally placed to further strengthen its development potential by acquiring new land parcels.

Outlook

India’s high growth imperative in 2024 and beyond will significantly be driven by major 
strides in key sectors with infrastructure development being a critical force aiding the 
progress. Infrastructure is a key enabler in helping India become a US $26 trillion economy. 
Investments in building and upgrading physical infrastructure, especially in synergy with the 
ease of doing business initiatives, remain pivotal to increase efficiency and costs.

The government’s focus on building infrastructure of the future has been evident given the 
slew of initiatives launched recently. The US$ 1.3 trillion national master plan for 
infrastructure, Gati Shakti, has been a forerunner to bring about systemic and effective 
reforms in the sector, and has already shown a significant headway. Infrastructure support to 
the nation’s manufacturers also remains one of the top agendas as it will significantly 
transform goods and exports movement making freight delivery effective and economical.

The infrastructure sector is a key driver of the Indian economy. The sector is highly 
responsible for propelling India’s overall development and enjoys intense focus from the 
Government for initiating policies that would ensure the time-bound creation of world-class 
infrastructure in the country. The infrastructure sector includes power, bridges, dams, roads, 
and urban infrastructure development. In other words, the infrastructure sector acts as a 
catalyst for India’s economic growth as it drives the growth of the allied sectors like 
townships, housing, built-up infrastructure, and construction development projects.

To meet India’s aim of reaching a US$ 5 trillion economy by 2025, infrastructure 
development is the need of the hour. The government has launched the National 
Infrastructure Pipeline (NIP) combined with other initiatives such as ‘Make in India’ and the 
production-linked incentives (PLI) scheme to augment the growth of the infrastructure sector. 
Historically, more than 80% of the country's infrastructure spending has gone toward funding 
for transportation, electricity, and water, and irrigation.

While these sectors still remain the key focus, the government has also started to focus on 
other sectors as India's environment and demographics are evolving. There is a compelling 
need for enhanced and improved delivery across the whole infrastructure spectrum, from 
housing provision to water and sanitation services to digital and transportation demands, 
which will assure economic growth, increase quality of life, and boost sectoral 
competitiveness.

Some of the recent government initiatives and investments in the infrastructure sector are as 
follows: Under Interim Budget 2024-25:
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• The Central government has increased its capital expenditure (capex) allocation to 
US$ I33.9 billion (Rs. ll.ll trillion) for the fiscal year beginning April 1,2024,with 
a focus on advancing India's infrastructure, as part of a strategic move to stimulate 
economic growth. An increase of 11.1% from the previous year, the FY25 interim 
budget allots US$ 133.9 billion (Rs. 11.11 trillion) for capital expenditures, or 3.4% 
of GDP.

• With a 37% increase in the current fiscal year, capital expenditures (capex) are on the 
rise, which bolsters ongoing infrastructure development and fits with Vision 2028

• In order to anticipate private sector investment and to address employment and 
consumption in rural India, the budget places a strong emphasis on the development 
of roads, shipping, and railways.

• India's ambitious plan calls for spending US$ 1.723 trillion (approximately Rs. 143 
trillion) on infrastructure between FY24 and FY30, with a particular emphasis on 
power, roads, and developing industries like renewable energy and electric vehicles.

• In Interim Budget 2024-25, capital investment outlay for infrastructure has been 
increased by 11.1% to Rs.l 1.11 lakh crore (US$ 133.86 billion), which would be 3.4 
%of GDP.

• The government has decided to allocate Rs. 2.76 lakh crore (US$ 33.4 billion) 
towards the Ministry of Roads for 2024-25.

• A capital outlay of Rs. 2.55 lakh crore (US$ 30.72 billion) has been made for the 
Railways, an increase of 5.8% over the previous year.

• The allocation for solar power grid reached Rs. 8,500 crores (US$ 1.02 billion) from 
the previous allocation of Rs. 4,970 crores (US$ 598.80 million).

• The Interim Budget 2024-25 allocated Rs. 1,11,876.6 crore (US$ 13.5 billion) for the 
Department of Telecom.

• The government announced Rs. 77,523.58 crore (US$ 9.3 billion) to the Ministry of 
Housing and Urban Affairs.

Three significant economic railway corridor initiatives—energy, port connectivity, mineral 
and cement, and high traffic density—will be carried out by the railway industry.

Real Estate

Indian real estate sector has witnessed high growth in the recent times with rise in demand for 
office as well as residential spaces. The Private Equity Investments in India’s real estate 
sector, stood at US$ 4.2 billion in 2024 as compared to the Private Equity Investments in 
India’s real estate sector, stood at US$ 3.4 billion in 2023.

By 2040, the real estate market will grow to Rs. 65,000 crore (US$ 9.30 billion) from Rs. 
12,000 crore (US$ 1.72 billion) in 2019. Real estate sector in India is expected to reach US$ 
1 trillion in market size by 2030, up from US$ 200 billion in 2021 and contribute 13% to the 
country’s GDP by 2025. Retail, hospitality, and commercial real estate are also growing 
significantly, providing the much-needed infrastructure for India's growing needs. India’s real 
estate sector is expected to expand to USS 5.8 trillion by 2047, contributing 15.5% to the 
GDP from an existing share of 7.3%. In FY23, India’s residential property market witnessed 
with the value of home sales reaching an all-time high of Rs. 3.47 lakh crore (USS 42 
billion), marking a robust 48% year-on-year increase. The volume of sales also exhibited a 
strong growth trajectory, with a 36% rise to 379,095 units sold. Indian real estate developers
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operating in the country’s major urban centers are poised to achieve a significant feat in 2024, 
with the completion of approximately 558,000 homes.

In 2024. demand for residentiai properties surged in the top 8 Indian cities, driven by mid­
income, premium, and luxury segments despite challenges like high mortgage rates and 
property prices. India’s physical retail landscape is poised for a substantial boost, with nearly 
4] million sq. ft of retail developments set to be operational between 2024 and 2028 across 
the top 7 cities, encompassing projects in various stages from construction to planning. For 
the first time, gross leasing in India's top seven markets surpassed the 60 million sq ft mark, 
reaching an impressive total of 62.98 million sq ft, marking a substantial 26.4% increase 
compared to the previous year. Notably, the December quarter emerged as the busiest quarter 
on record, with gross leasing hitting 20.94 million sq ft. Technology companies held the 
highest share in leasing activity at 22% during first quarter of 2024.Engineering and 
manufacturing (E&M) companies accounted for 13%, and banking, financial services and 
insurance account for 12%. Flexible space operators increase by 48%, showcasing their 
notable contributions. According to Savills India, real estate demand for data centers is 
expected to increase by 15-18 million sq. ft. by 2025.

In 2024, office absorption in the top seven cities stood at 41.97 million Sq. ft. and Gross 
Leasing Volume is at 62.98 million sq. ft. Fresh real estate launches across India’s top seven 
cities grabbed a 41% share in the first quarter of 2024 (January-March), marking an increase 
from the 26% recorded in the same period four years ago. Out of approximately 1.14 lakh 
units sold across the top seven cities in the first quarter of 2024, over 41% were fresh 
launches.

According to the Economic Times Housing Finance Summit, about three houses are built per 
1,000 people per year compared with the required construction rate of five houses per 1,000 
population. The current shortage of housing in urban areas is estimated to be ~10 million 
units. An additional 25 million units of affordable housing are required by 2030 to meet the 
growth in the country’s urban population.

Risks and Concerns:

The industry is affected by the factors like increased cement & steel cost, power cost; 
increase in labour cost and transportation cost due to petrol/diesel price increase etc. could 
contribute to inflation. The Company considers good corporate governance as a pre-requisite 
for meeting the needs and aspiration of its shareholders. The main risk to the Company which 
may arise is mainly due to Government policies and decisions, fluctuations in prices of Raw 
materials. Exchange rate fluctuations. Industry demand etc.

Internal Control Systems and their adequacy:

The Company has an adequate system of internal controls to ensure accuracy of accounting 
records, compliance with the applicable laws & regulations. In a developing and dynamic 
economy such as India, regulatory environment keeps on progressing to keep pace with the 
global dynamics in the fields of environment, taxation, competition, governance, etc. Non- 
compliance of applicable regulations may lead to imposition of penalties, suspension of 
operations, among others apart from reputational damage. This may also hinder the pace of 
innovation, upgradation, transformation within the organisation. To mitigate the same, the
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Company keeps a strict vigil and regularly tracks the regulatory environment and takes 
necessary actions. Wherever required, it amends/ upgrades its operational practices and 
incurs capex to ensure compliance.

Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance (Amount in ‘000):

Total Income showed a Increased of earnings from Rs. 50.38 to Rs. 1400.37.

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the 
immediately previous financial year) in key' financial ratios, along with detailed 
explanations therefor, including:

a. Debtors Turnover : NIL

b. Inventory Turnover : NIL

c. Interest Coverage Ratio : NIL

d. Current Ratio: 28.56

e. Debt Equity Ratio : NIL

f. Operating Profit Margin (%) :NIL

g. Net Profit Margin (%) or sector-specific equivalent ratios, as applicable :Not 
Applicable

h. details of any change in Return on Net Worth as compared to the immediately 
previous financial year along with a detailed explanation thereof: Not Applicable

Cautionary Statement: The statements in this management discussion and analysis 
describing the outlook may be “forward looking statement” within the meaning of applicable 
laws and regulations. Actual result might differ; substantially or materially from those 
expected due to the developments that could affect the Company’s operations. The factors 
like significant change in political and economic environment, tax laws, litigation, 
technology, fluctuations in material cost etc. may deviate the outlook and result.
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Regd. Off: 4lh Floor, Raheja Chambers, Linking Road & Main Avenue, Santacruz (West), 
Mumbai - 400 054 Phone Nos.: 022 - 67694400 / 4444

Email: tivoliconstruction@vahoo.co.inWebsite: www.tivoliconstruction.in

Annual Declaration under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

DECLARATION

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, We hereby declare that all the 
Board members and senior executives of the Company have complied with Code of Ethics of 
the Company the year ended March 31, 2024.

TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED

Rakesh Desai 
Director 
DIN:00152982

Anita Raheja
Director
DIN:00306794

Place: Mumbai 
Date :30lh August, 2024
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Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31” MARCH 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule No.9 of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Tivoli Construction 
Limited (hereinafter called "the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

.Management's responsibility

The Management along with the Board of Directors are responsible for ensuring that the 
Company complies with the provisions of all applicable laws and maintains the required 
statutory records and doemnents in the prescribed manner.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance with die applicable laws 
and maintenance of records by the Company. We conducted our audit in accordance with 
the auditing standards GSAS 1 to CSAS 4 ("CSAS") prescribed by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India ("ICSI"). These standards require that the auditor complies 
with statutory and regulatory requirements and plans and performs the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and maintenance of records.

Due to the inherent limitations of an audit including internal, financial and operating 
controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some misstatements or material non-

/
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compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned and 
performed in accordance with the CSAS.

Basis for Opinion

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The 

.verification was clone on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in the 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a 
reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, fonns and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and provided as scanned 
copies in electronic mode and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit 
1 hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period 
covering the financial year ended on 31s' March 2024, generally complied with die 
statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- 
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to 
the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31s1 March 2024 
.kvording to the provisions of:

(i) Hu? Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;.

(ii) The Securities Contract (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there 
under;

(mf The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-taws framed them under:

! v. l:\rh,inj-.c Management Act. 1999 and the rules and regulations made
lii- reund' i t" the extent of Overseas Direct Investment.

I'roviMnns relating to foreign Direct Investment and lixtornal Commercial 
Borrowings were not applicable to the Company during the financial Year;

(v| I lie lollowing Regulations ami Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and

I'rtRe 2
)
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Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBJ Act')

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantia] Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, 1992; and

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 • Not Applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and 
Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021- Not Applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non- 
convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable to the Company 
during the Audit Period;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021 - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
2018 - Not Applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("LODR").

(i) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representation given by the 
, Company.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review and subject to the explanations given to us and the 
representations made by the Management, tire Company has complied with the 
provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

Page 3
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subject to tl\e following observation:

Whereas

a. h; terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was 
required to have certain Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and regulation 33{2)(a) of SEBl 
(LODR) Regulations, 2015, the chief executive officer and chief financial officer of the 
listed entity shall certify that the financial results do not contain any false or misleading 
statement or figures anti do not omit any material fact which may make the statements or 
figures contained therein misleading (CEO and CFO Certification). After resignation of 
former Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company, the Company has been unable to 
appoint a CFO in terms of the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
has not obtained CEO and CFO Certification in terms of SEBl (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

b. In terms of the regulation 6 of SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015, the Company was required to appoint Compliance Officer within 3 
months from the resignation of Company Secretary of Company on 03/01/2024, the 
Company has appointed Director, who was not qualified company secretary as the 
compliance officer and he has certified and issued compliance certificate for quarter ended 
December 2023 and March 2024 for the compliance requirement of Structured Digital 
Database for handling unpublished price-sensitive information, pursuant to provisions of 
Regulation 3(5) and 3(6) of SEBl (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

1 further report that

The compliances by the Company of applicable financial laws like Direct and Indirect tax 
laws have not been reviewed in this Audit since the same are subject to review by 
Statutory Financial Audit.

The Board o/ Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
lixecutive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors as applicable.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, were sent as 
per the compliance of the Companies Act, 2013, and a system exists for seeking and 
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The Board decisions are carried out with the assenting views of the Directors.

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in die company
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c-':s*'' CS Jignesh Makwana
Practicing Company Secretary

S>16, Scj Plaza Marvc Road, Malad West 
Mumbai-400 064

Tel: 022 4970 4BOO 
E: C5imakwana8fmail.com

commensurate with the size and operations of tlie company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report

/

C& ignesh Makwana 
Pra ticing Company Secretary 
Mem No.: F9920 
COP: 13928
UDIN: F009920F001080627

Date: 3<y0$tt024 
Place: Mumbai
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CS Jignesh Makwana
Practicing Company Secretary

S*16, Scj Plazj Marve Road, Malad West 
Mumbai-400 064

Tel: 022 4970 4800 
E: fsiniakwanafti'Hirtil com

'Annexurc A'

To,
The Members,
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the Company.

2. Wherever required, we have obtained Management representation about the 
Compliance of the various other laws, rules and regulations and happening of events
etc.

3. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the Company.

CS jignesh Makwana 
Practicing Company Secretary 
Mem No- F9920 
COP: 13928
UDIN: F009920F001080627

Date: 3q/08/2024 
Place: Mumbai

Page 6
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
FORM AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) Section 129 read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Joint Ventures/Associates

Part A: Subsidiaries
(Amount In Thousands)

Victoria 
Investments 
Company LtdName of SubsidiarySr. No.

The date since when subsidiary was acquired1 31-03-1986
2 Reporting Currency INR
3 Share Capital 7,004
4 Reserves & Surplus 17,237

Total Assets5 24,286
6 Total Liabilities 44
7 Investments Nil
8 Turnover 1,672

Profit/(Loss) Before Taxation9 923
10 Provision for Taxation 232

Profit/(loss) After Taxation11 691
12 Proposed Dividend 1401

% of shareholding13 100%

Part B: Associates and Joint Ventures
(Amount in Tliousands)

Name of Associates/Joint VenturesSr. No. Ml
1 Latest audited Balance Sheet date

Date on which the Associate or Joint Venture was2
associated or acquired
Shares of Associates/Joint Ventures held by the 
Company on the year end

3

Number
Amount of investment in Associates/Joint 
Venture
Extend of Holding %
Description of how there is significant influence4
Reason why the Associate/Joint Venture is not 
consolidated

5

6 Networth attributable to Shareholding as per 
latest audited Balance Sheet

Profit/(Loss) for the year7

i. Considered in Consolidation
il. Not Considered in Consolidation

Notes: (1) Nameof entities which have been liquidated or sold during the year - None. 
(2) The reporting period of the subsidiary company is March 31, 2024.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of 
TfVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED

S

Anita RaltejiT* Rakesh Desai 
Director 
DIN:00152982

Director 
DIN:00306794

Place: Mumbai 
Date : 3 0 AUG 2024
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LIMITED 
CIN: L45200MH1985PLC037365

Dear Shareholder,

Sub: Notice for the 38n Annual General Meeting of the Members of Tivoli Construction 
Limited to be held on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 11:00 a.m. at 4“ Floor, Raheja 
Chambers, Linking Road & Main Avenue, Santacruz - (West), Mumbai - 400 054.

Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules 2014 and also in continuation of the 'Green 
Initiative' of the Company, the Notice of the aforesaid Meeting is being served through 
electronic mode to your email address registered with your Depository Participant(s) or with 
the Company, as the case may be. In this regard, please find attached herewith the 38" Annual 
Report for the year 2023-24 containing the Financial Statements for the financial year 2023- 
24 and Notice convening the Annual General Meeting to be held on Monday, 30th September, 
2024 at 11:00 a.m.

Further, in terms of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is providing the 
facility to its Members holding shares in physical or dematerialized form as on the cut-off 
date, being 23fd September, 2024, to exercise their right to vote by electronic means on any 
or all of the businesses specified in the Notice convening the 38th Annual General Meeting of 
the Company as mentioned above. The Company has obtained the e-voting services of 
National Securities Depository Limited.

The e-voting portal opens for voting on Friday 27th September, 2024 at 9.00 AM and ends on 
Sunday, 29thSeptember, 2024 at 5.00 P.M. Please accord your assent/dissent by accessing the 
website: https://evoting.nsdl.com and logging-in by using your user ID and password. Kindly 
refer the E-voting instructions which are attached to the Notice. The EVEN (E-Voting Event 
Number) of the Company is: 131285

For any queries, please refer the details given below:
Ms. Tanuja Sharma
Company Secretary &Compliance Officer 
Tivoli Construction Limited,
4th Floor, Raheja Chambers,
Linking Road & Main Avenue,
Santacruz - (West), Mumbai-400 054
Phone No.: 022 - 6769 4400/4444
Website: www.tivoliconstruction.in
Email Id: tivoliconstruction@yahoo.co.in,
investor@tivoliconstruction.in & tivolicompliance@vahoo.com
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Ok
N.S. SHETTY & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

"Arjun”, Plot No. 6A. V.P. Road. 
Andheri (W). Mumbai - 400 058

Phone : 2623 1716, 2623 7669 Fax : 2624 5364 
E-mail: nsshetty_co@yahoo.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Tivoli Construction Limited

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tivoli Construction Limited 
{"the Compan/’) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2024, the Statement of Profit 
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as "the standalone financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31?* March, 2024, 
and Profit including Other Comprehensive Income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year 
ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent 
of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of 
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon. Based on the circumstances and facts of the Audit, there are no key audit matters 
to be reported.
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Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The 
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include 
the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course 
of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act 
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair 
view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive Income, changes in equity 
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from materia! 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Compan/s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial reporting process

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial statements.

^FimiNg
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As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate 
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Compan/s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, 
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider 
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report 
uttless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare

h:
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circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central 
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the.information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone financial statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
. under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2024 
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none the directors are disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in 
"Annexure B".

g. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has not paid/provided 
remuneration to its Director during the year.

h. Refer note no.25 of the financial statement regarding appointment of Chief Financial Officer.

i. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial 
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Company.
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iv. (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the 
Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity ("Funding Parties"), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, 
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement.

v. The Company has neither declared nor paid the dividend during the year.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an accounting 
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit 
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year from 4,h April, 2023 for all 
relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did 
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with.

For N $ Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRNo.: 0110101W

Firm NTC^ 
Reg. No. Y* 

*( noioiw.l^ 
Mumbai

*>;

Rohit Shetty 
Partner 
M. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 29th May, 2024 
UDIN: 24135463BKEJWR3644
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of 
our report of even date)

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the 
standalone financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and 
explanations given to us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal 
course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that:

The Company does not have any fixed asset and hence clause (i) (a) to (e) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

ii. As informed to us, the Company does not have any inventory during the year under review and 
also not availed working capital limit from banks or financial institution. Hence clause (ii)(a) to 
(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii. During the year the Company has not made investment in, nor provided guarantee or security 
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to Companies, 
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, or other parties, therefore reporting under clause 3 (iii){a) 
to (f) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

iv. The Company has complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013 
in respect of loans granted, investments made, guarantees and security provided.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 73 to 76 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder. Hence, reporting under clause 
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

v.

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148 
(1) of the Act, for any of the activities carried on by the Company.

vii. According to the information and explanations given to us in respect of Statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, 
including Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Professional Tax, Cess and 
other material statutory dues wherever applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of income Tax, Goods and Service 
Tax, Customs Duty, Professional Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as 
at 31st March, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable except Professional Tax of Rs.12,700/- which is outstanding for more than six 
months as on 31st March, 2024.

(c) There were no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty and Value Added 
Tax which have not been deposited as at 31st March, 2024 on account of dispute.

viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered or 
___disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 during the year.
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The Company neither availed any loans or borrowings nor declared as wilful defaulter by any 
financial institution, banks, government or debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, 
clause 3(ix)(a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable.

IX.

The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer 
(including debt instruments) and not availed any term loans from banks or financial institutions 
during the year. Hence reporting under clause 3 (x) of the order is not applicable to the 
company.

x.

(a) No material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been 
noticed or reported during the year.

XI.

(b) No report sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the 
auditors in Form ADT-4.

(c) As informed to us, the Company didn't receive any complaints from whistle-blower.

The Company is not a nidhi company. Hence, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.XII.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 
177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed 
in the financial statements as required by the applicable Ind AS.

xm.

(a) In our opinion, the Company has adequate internal audit system commensurate with the 
size and nature of its business.

xiv.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year audit, issued to the Company 
during the year and till date, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit 
procedure.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with 
directors or persons connected with them during the year. Accordingly, clause (xv) of the Order 
is not applicable to the Company.

xv.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India 
Act 1934. Hence reporting under clause 3 (xvi) (a) to (d) of the order is not applicable to the 
company.

xvi.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash loss in the current financial year. However, the Company 
has incurred cash losses of Rs. 10.45 Lakhs in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii. There is no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets 
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements 
our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, and based on our 
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, 
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit 
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
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balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet 
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. 
We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they 
fall due.

xx. The Company is exempt from complying with Sec.135 of Companies Act, 2013.

For N S Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRNo.: 0110101W

'fof Firm \Ov 
Reg. No. \V 

*( 110101W )w
MumbaiRdhit Shetty 

Partner 
M. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 29th May, 2024
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Annexure - B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred in Para 2(f) under "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our 
report of even date)

Report on the internal Financial Controls over financial reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tivoli Construction 
Limited ("the Company") as of 31st March 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind 
AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate Internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its 
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by ICAI 
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting 
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment 
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financialWW;SZ). -N<y
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statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A 
company's internal financial control and financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company 
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For N S Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRNo.: 0110101W

Firm
W Reg.No- 
*1 tiOiOiW )w 

Wlumbay^
Rohit Shetty 
Partner 
M. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 29th May, 2024
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CIN: L45200MH1985PLC037365 
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

>M

Rs. In '000
As at

31st March 
2024

As at
31st March 

2023

NoteParticulars
No.

ASSETS
Non-current assets 
Financial assets: 

Investments 
Other financial assets 

Tax Assets (net)
Other non-current assets 
Total non-current assets

3 6,509.00 
208.00 ' 
52.36

6,509.00
208.00

5.64

4
5

6,769.36 6,722.64

Current assets 
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents 
Other balances with Banks 
Other financial assets

Total current assets

6 1,211.36 990.48
7
8 8.32 8.32

1,219.68 998.80

Total Assets 7,989.04 7,721.44

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity

9Equity share capital • 
Other equity
Total equity

5,000.00
2,946.34

5,000.00
2,680.2610

7,946.34 7,680.26

Liabilities 
Current liabilities
Financial liabilites

Other financial liabilites 
Other Current liabilites
Total current liabilities

11 42.70 41.18

42.70 41.18

7,721.447,989.04 •Total equity and liabilities

1 to 26Notes forming part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

As per our report of even date
For N. S. Shetty &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. : 110101W

Rakesh Desai 
DirectorDirector

?( VWIOI'N jfo 

Mumbai
DIN:00152982DIN:00306794Rohit Shetty 

Partner
Mem. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date

I
: 2 9 MAY 2024 Tanoja Sharma 

Company Secretary

58



TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CIN: L45200MK1985PLC037365

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

Rs. In '000

Particulars Note Year Ended 
31st March 2024

Year Ended 
31st March 2023No.

Income

Revenue from operations 
Other income

Total income
12 1,400.37 50.38

1,400.37 50.38

Expenses

Employee benefit expenses 
Other expenses
Total expenses

13 270.00 360.00
14 770.80 735.43

1,040.80 1,095.43

Profit/(Loss) before exceptional items and Tax .

Exceptional items - Profit/(loss)

Profit/(Loss) before Tax '
Tax Expense

Income Tax

Tax in respect of earlier years

Profit/(Loss) after Tax 
Other comprehensive income

Items that may not be reclasified to the statement of profit and loss

Total Other comprehensive income, net of tax

359.57 (1,045.05)

359.57 (1,045.05)

93.49

266.08 (1,045.05)

Total comprehensive income for the year (1,045.05)266.08

Earnings per share (of Rs 10 each):

Basic

Diluted

0.53 (2.09)
(2.09)0.53

Notes forming part of the financial statements 1 to 26

As per our report of even date

For N. S. Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. : 110101W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

?( ?Boiw )e Anita Raheja'"' Rakesh Desai 
Director 
DIN:00306794

■Rohit Shetty \l 
Partner

Mem. No. 135463

Director
DIN:001S2982

Place: Mumbai

: 29 MAY 2024Date
Tanuja Sharma 
Company Secretary
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CIN: L45200MH19B5PLC037365
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

.'It

Rs. In '000

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax 
Adjustments for :
Dividend Income 
Interest income

359.57 (1,045.05)

(1,400.18)
(0.19) (50.38)

(1,400.37) (50.38)
(1,095.43)Operating Profit before working capital changes (1,040.80)

Changes in ;
Trade and other payables 1.52 1.52 2.78 2.78
Cash generated from operations (1,039.28)

(140.21)
(1,092.65)

5.26Direct Taxes paid (Net of Refunds)
Net cash flow from operating activities (1,179.49) (1,087.39)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from Bank Deposits (having original maturity of more than 
three months)

Dividend income

1,200.00

1,400.18
Interest received 0.19 50.38
Net cash flow from investing activities 1,400.37 1,250.38

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Net cash flow from financing activities

NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 220.88 162.99

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE START OF THE YEAR 990.48 827.49

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1,211.36 990.48

As per our report of even date
For N. S. Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. : 110101

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

'fo/ Firm 
<r/ Re9‘N®v \*
*1 AiOiO'W )« 
SoV Mumbai/^

e \--- -ex.
Rakesh Desai
Director
DIN:00152982

Anita Raheja 1-~
Director
DIN:00306794Partner

Mem. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:

2 9 MAY 2024 Tanuja Sharma 
Company Secretary
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CIN: L45200MH1985PLC037365 
Statement of Changes in Equity

Rs. In '000

a) Equity share capital 
As at 1st April, 2022
Changes in the equity share capital during the year

As at 31st March 2023
Changes in the equity share capital during the year
As at 31st March 2024

5,000.00

5,000.00

5,000.00

Rs. In ’000bl Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Particulars TotalGeneral reserve Retained Earnings

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year 
Allocations/Appropriations
Transferred (tol / from Retained Earnings

2,960.00 765.31 3,725.31
(1.045.05)(1,045.05)

(1,045.05) (1,045.05)

Balance as at March 31, 2022 2,960.00 (279.74) 2.680.26

Balance as at April 1, 2023 (279.74)2,960.00 2,680.26

Loss for the year 266.08 266.08

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year 
Allocations/Appropriations
Transferred (to) / from Retained Earnings

266.08 266.08
i
1

Balance as at March 31, 2024 2.960.00 (13.66) 2,946.34

Nature & Purpose of Reserve 
(a) General reserve

The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings far 
appropriation purposes. As the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and 
is not an item of other comprehensive income.

(b) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

As per our report of even date

ForN. S. Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. : 110

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

Rakesh DesaiRohlt Shetty I 
Partner
Mem. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai

Anita Raheja
DirectorDirector
DIN:00152982DIN: 00306794

w
Date: 2 9 MAY 202(

Company Secretary
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information:

TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD (the "Company"), is a public limited company incorporated in India 
and has its registered office situated at 4ttl Floor, Raheja Chambers, Linking Road and Main 
Avenue, Santacruz (West), Mumbai 400 054.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of construction.

Note 2: Basis of Preparation, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements, Material 
Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

(i) Compliance with IND AS

These standalone financial statements have .been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standard (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Basis of preparation

(a) These standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, 
on the accrual basis of accounting. The accounting policies have been applied consistently 
over all the periods presented in financial statements.

(b) Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for 
goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date.

(c) Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 year 
and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year 
being reckoned from the reporting date.

(Mi) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and 
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions, that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to 
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of 
income and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any 
future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognized in the financial statements pertain to:

(a) Impairment testing: The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value- 
in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates

-r-----and assumptions which include turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net
^^TTK^oargins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate,^.and 

~ re economic and market conditions. -<o;
•★ \ .

*t 1101Q1W Jc* 
S\ Mumbai
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(b) Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as 
probable that deductible temporary differences can be realized. The Company'estimates 
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, 
business plans, including management's expectations regarding the manner and timing of 
recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of 
deferred tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charges in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, 
developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may 
be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from 
expectations resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, 
cash tax settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(iv) Material Accounting Policies:

(a) Revenue recognition:
(i) Income from operations
Revenue from operations is accounted on-accrual, is net of indirect taxes, returns and 
discounts. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

(ii) Interest:
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate 
method.

(iii) Dividend Income:
Dividend income is recorded when the right to receive payment is established.

(b) Investments in subsidiaries
Investment in a subsidiary is a long-term investment and is carried at cost.

(c) Taxation
(i) Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Income Tax laws 

applicable to the assessment year.
(ii) Deferred tax is recognized on timing difference being the difference between taxable 

incomes and accounting income that originates in one period and is capable of reversal 
in one or more subsequent periods. Where there is unabsorbed depreciation, or carry 
forward losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of 
realisation of such assets.

(iii) Minimum Alternate Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the 
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during 
the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying 
amount is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence that the 
Company will be liable to pay norma! income tax during the specified period.

(d) Impairment of assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date, to assess any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is 
estimated. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the assets 
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the net selling price or 
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value, based on an appropriate discounting factor.

^^reviously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes- in' 
stufumstances.

Firm
<7 Reg. No. V* 
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(e) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a binding present obligation. This may be 
either legal because it derives from a contract,.Jegislation or other operation of law because the 
Company created valid expectations on the part of the third parties by accepting certain 
responsibilities. To record such an obligation it must be probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of 
the obligation.

(f) Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for the year is classified by operating, investing and 
financing activities.

(g) Earnings per Share
Basic earning per share is computed, by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential 
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per share.

(h) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a 
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(I) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification 
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value. However, trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction 
price.

Classification:
• Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash comprises cash/cheques on hand and demand 

deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances with an original maturity of 
three months or less from the date of acquisition, highly liquid investment that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value.

• Debt Instruments - The Company classifies its debt instruments as subsequently 
measured at amortised cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value 
through profit or loss based on its business model for managing the financial assets and 
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets 
are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income from these financial assets 
is included as a part of the Company’s income in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
using the effective interest rate method.

e^TTKS^ii) Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCI)
^ Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through .OtherFirm

Reg No Comprehensive Income if these financial assets are held for collection of contractual
* ( 110101W ) coJ)cas*1 ':'ows anc* f°r selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent
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solely payments of principal and interest. Movements in the carrying value are taken 
through Other Comprehensive income, except for the' recognition of impairment gains 
or losses, interest revenue are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When 
the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in Other Comprehensive Income is reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income to 
the Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income on such financial assets is included 
as a part of the Company's income in the Statement of Profit and loss using the 
effective interest rate method.

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPLI
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on such debt instrument that is 
subsequently measured at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship as well as 
interest income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(II) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the 
classification of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities, which are not at fair value 
through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are subsequently measured'at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 
Gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are 
:derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

De-recoanition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are 
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

(III) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether a financial asset or a group of 
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS-109 on Financial Instruments, requires expected credit 
losses to be measured through a loss allowance.

SiiirF
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Rs. In ,000
As at

31st March 
2024

As at
31st March 

2023
Particulars

Note 3 Non Current Investments

Investment in equity of subsidiary • Unquoted
Victoria Investments Company Limited 

700,400 (700,400) fully paid up equity shares 
of Rs.10 each (at amortised cost)

6,509.00 6,509.00

6.509.00 6,509.00

Note 4 Other non‘Current financial assets

Deposits with banks (at amortised cost) 20B.Q0 208.00

208.00 208.00

Note S Tax assets (Net)

Income Tax assets (net)

Opening balance for the year

Less : Tax payable for the year 
Add : Taxes paid

Less: Refund Received during the year 
Add: Adjustment for earlier years tax provision 
Closing balance

5.64 10.90
(93.49)
140.21 5.00

(10.26)

52.36 5.64

Note 6 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Balances with bank in current account

0.40 0.21
1.210.96 990.27
1.211.36 990.48

Note 7 Other Balances with Banks
Term deposits with original maturity for 
more than 3 months but less than 12 months

Note 8 Other financial assets

Interest receivable 8.32 8.32

8.32 8.32

Note 9 Equity Share Capital 
a) Authorised Capital

5,00,000 (5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00

b) Issued share capital

5,00,000 (5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 5,000.00 5,000.00

c) Subscribed and fully paid up

5,00,000 (5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 5,000.005,000.00
5.000.00 5.000.00

d) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding jt the beqlnnp and at the and of the year

As at 31st March 2023As at 31st March 2024

Rs. In 'OOPRs. In ‘OOP No. of sharesNo. of shares

At the begin ng of the year 5,00,000 5.000.005,00,000 5,000.00

At the end of the year 5.00,000 5.000.005.00.000 5.000.00

e) Shareholders holding more than SAfr shares

As at 31st March 2023As at 31st March 2024

% of holding8k of holding No. of sharesNo of shares
10.01%10.01% 50,03050.030Anita D Rafieja

60,900 13.78%1,04,500 20 90%Progressive Star Finance Private LTD

24.64%1,23,2001,33,300 26.66%Kamla C Wadhws

*\ uoioivy if*
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the financial statements

f) Details of Equity Shares held by Holding Company/Promoters
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Name of Shareholder No. of 
Shares 

held

% Held % of change 
during the 
year

No. of 
Shares held

% Held % of change 
during the 
year

MRS KAMLA WADHWA 2.02%1,33,300 26.66% 1,23,200 24.64% NIL
MRS ANITA D RAHEJA ' 50,030 NIL 50,033 NIL10.01% 10.01%
MR. CHATURBHU3 WADHWA NIL NIL200 0 04% 200 0 04%
MR. BHAGWANDAS S RAHEJA NIL NIL10,100 2.02% 10,100 2.02%
BHAGWANDAS SEWARAM HUF 20,100 NIL 20,100 NIL4.02% 4.02%
DR. BEHARILALS. RAHEJA -2.02% NIL0.00% 10,100 2.02%
DR. BEHARILAL SEWARAM HUF -4.02%0 00% 20,100 4.02% NIL
MRS SHEELA H RAJANI 200 0.04% NIL 200 0.04% NIL
MRS. SHOBHA RAJPAL 100 NIL NIL0.02% 100 0.02%
MR NARESH B AHUJA NIL NIL100 0.02% 100 0.02%
MR RABINDER G AHUJA NIL NIL100 0.02% 100 0.02%
MR. BULCHAND G AHUJA NIL NIL100 0.02% 100 0.02%
MRS ASHA S AHUJA NIL NIL100 0.02% 100 0.02%
MRS SAROJ R AHUJA NIL100 0.02% 100 0.02% NIL
MRS. 1NDRA B AHUJA 100 0.02% NIL 100 0.02% NIL
MRS SHANTI B RAHEJA 10,100 2.02% NIL 10,100 2.02% NIL
VIJAY B RAHEJA 16,900 NIL NIL3.38% 16,900 3.38%
VIJAY 6 RAHEJA OF K.B TRUST NIL NIL20,100 4.02% 20,100 4.02%
SONAL PROPERTIES P LTD -3.00% NIL0.00% 15,000 3.00%
BRINDABAN BUILDERS PRIVATE 
LIMITED 11,300 2.26% 11,300 2.26%NIL NIL
SHIRAZ BUILDERS P LTD -0.10%0.00% 500 0.10% NIL
B.S.R. GRIHNIRMAN P LTD NIL NIL400 0.08% 400 0.08%
BANDRA CONSTRUCTION P LTD NIL NIL600 0.12% 600 0.12%
BANDRA PROPERTIES P LTD 15,000 3.00% NIL 15,000 3.00% NIL
BEAU RIVAGE ESTATES P LTD 500 NIL NIL0.10% 500 0.10%
G.V.R BUILDERS P LTD NIL NIL400 0.08% 400 0.08%

NIL NILLAVINA ESTATES PVT LTD 400 0.08% 400 0.08%
NILLOUISIANA ESTATES P LTD 500 0.10% NIL 500 0.10%

QUEENS CONSTRUCTION P LTD NIL NIL400 0 08% 400 0.08%

RAJ DEEP RAHEJA EXPORTS PVT LTD 1,500 1,500 0.30%0.30% NIL NIL
NIL NILS.B.R ESTATES & FINANCE P LTD 200 0.04% 200 0.04%

SEA SIDE PROPERTIES PVT LTD NIL 0.04% NIL200 0.04% 200
SUNANDA CONSTRUCTION P LTD NIL NIL15,000 3.00% 15,000 3.00%

NILVIJAY RAHEJA BUILDERS P LTD 10,000 2.00% NIL 10,000 2.00%

2.04%PEBBLE BAY DEVELOPERS P LIMITED 10,200 2.04% 10,200 NILNIL

M HOiOlW Jw 
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Ps. In 000
As at

31st March 
2024

As at
31st March 

2023
Particulars

Note 10 Other equity
General reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet

(a)

2,960.00 2,960.00

(b) Retained earnings

Opening Balance
Add: Net Pfofit(loss) after tax
transferred from statement of profit
and loss

Closing Balance

(279.74) 765 31

266.08 (1,045.05)
(13.66) (279.74)

2,946.34 2.680.26

Note 11 Other current financial liabilities
Statutory liabilities 
Liability for expenses

17.70
25.00

16.1$
25.00

42.70 41.1$

cAMjLTTh
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the financial statements

Rs. In 'OOP
Year Ended 
31st March 

2024

Year Ended 
31st March 

2023
Particulars

Note 12 Other income
Interest income

On deposit with Banks 
On Income Tax Refund

49.97
0.19 0.41

Dividend Income 1,400.18

1,400.37 50.38

Note 13 Empoyee benefit expenses
Salaries & wages 270.00 360.00

270.00 360.00

Note 14 Other expenses
Advertisement expenses
Annual custody fees

Bank Charges
Filing fees

Listing fees
Rates and taxes

Legal and professional
Auditors remuneration (Refer note below)
Directors' sitting fees
Miscellaneous expenses

License &. Software expenses

110.59 90.00
9.00 9.00

0.74 0.59
8.21 4.01

325.00 300.00
103.32 105.06
155.79 107.00
50.00 50.00

3.75 4.00
0.771.41

65.003.00
735.43770.80

Auditors' remuneration comprises

Statutory Audit

Others

30.00 30.00
20.0020.00
50.0050.00

*{ Reg. No. W 
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note-15 Earnings Per Share (EPS)
31st March, 

2024
31st March, 

2023

Continuing and total onerations 
Net profit / (loss) for the year
Weighted average number of eauity shares 
Par value oer share 
Earnings per share in Rs.

266.08
5,00,000

(1,045.05)
5,00,000

10 10
0.53 (2.09)

Note-16 Dues to Micro & Small Enterprise
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the “Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 
2006" is based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such 
vendors under the said Act, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company. 
There are no due/overdue principal amounts / interest payable amounts for delayed payments to such 
vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year 
or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this regard in 
respect of payment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year.

Note-17 Segment information

The nature of activities of the Company is such that there are neither reportable nor geographical segment in 
terms of Ind AS -108 on “Operating Segments”.

Note-18 Related Party Disclosure
Names of related parties and related party relationship-where control exists

Subsidiary CompanyVictoria Investments Company Ltd

Key Managerial Personnel 
Bulchand Ahuja 
Anita Raheja 
Sagar Rupani 
Rakesh Desai

Pinal Parekh 
Tanuja Sharma

Company Secretary upto 04/01/24 
Company Secretary w.e.f.30/04/24

Director
Director
Director
Director

Transactions with Related parties during the year Rs. In '000
Particulars 2022-20232023-2024
Remuneration to

Pinal Parekh 270.00 360.00

Dividend Income From
Victoria Investments Company Ltd 1,400.18

Directors Sitting Fees
Bulchand Ahuja 
Anita Raheja 
Sagar Rupani 
Rakesh Desai______

0.25
1.25 1.25
1.25 1.25
1.25 1,25

Rs. In 'OOOBalances with Related Parties as on 31st March, 2023
Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023
Investments
Victoria Investments Company Ltd 6,509.00 6,509.00

Note-19 Contingent liabilities & Commitments
The Company does not have any contingent liability and commitments as on the balance sheet date.

Note-20 Deferred Tax
Since there are no material adjustments between both Accounting Income and Taxable Income, the Deferred 
Tax assets or Liabilities is Nil in accordance with Ind AS 12 on "Income Taxes".

Note-21 In the opinion of management, Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a relizable value in the ordinary 
course of business not less than the amount at which thay are stated in the balance sheet and provision for 
all known liabilities and doubtful assets have been made.

Note-22 The company's has only interest income. Considering the same, it has no material impact on the revenue due 
to COVID-19. Company is also expecting their assets to be realized at their values reflecting in books.

Note-23 During the year the company does not have any transaction with the Strike off Companies.

Reg. No. \*
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Note-24 Disclosure of ratio
Sr. Particulars Numerator Denominator For the year 

2023-2024
For the year 
2022-2023

% Remarks for variance 
more than 25°/oNo. Variance

1 Current Ratio Current Asset Current Liability 28.56 24.25 17.77
2 Debt-Equity Ratio Borrowings Shareholder's

Fund
NIL NIL

3 Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio

Net profit after tax 
+Non-cash operating 
Expenses + Interest 
^ other non cash

Interest + 
Principal 
repayment of 
Borrowing

NIL NIL

4 Return on Equity
Ratio

Net profit after Tax Average 
shareholder's 
fund 

3.41 -12.74 126.73 Due to profit during the 
year

5 Inventory 
turnover ratio

Cost of goods sold Average
Inventory

NIL NIL

6 Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

Revenue from 
Operations

Average trade 
receivables

NIL NIL

7 Trade payables 
turnover ratio

Purchase of Service 
and other expenses

Average trade 
payables

NIL NIL

8 Net capital 
turnover ratio

Total Income Working Capital 1.19 O.OS 2,161.52 Due to profit during the 
year

9 Net profit ratio Net profit after Tax Total Income 19.00 -2074.29 100.92 Due to profit during the 
year

10 Return on Capital 
employed

Profit before tax and 
finance costs

Net Worth - 
Deffered tax 
Assets

0.03 -0.14 124.61 Due to profit during the 
year

11 Return on 
investment

Income generated 
from investments

Average
invested funds in 
investment

NIL NIL

Note-25 Inspite of concerted efforts by the Company, the Company has not been able to find a suitable canditate and hence the position of CFO is 
still not filled up and hence the provisions of Section 203 (1) (Mi) of the Companies Act 2013 is not complied with. The Company is still on 
the look-out and is hopeful of finding the right candidate soon.

Note-26 Additional information as required by General Instructions for preparatiorvof Financial Statement (other than already disclosed above) are 
either Nil or not applicable.

As per our report of even date
For N. S. Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. : 110101W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

fay P,rrn \*7 Reg.No. \*
*1 iioioivvi )*> 

VA Mumbai: 2 9 MAY 20^^

Anita Raheja
Director
DIN: 00306794

Rakesh Desai
Director
DIN:00152982

Tanuja Shanfra

Partner
Mem. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date

5^.

Company Secretary
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N.S. SHETTY & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

"Arjun". P ot No. 6A, V.P. Road, 
Andheri (W), Mumbai - 400 058

Phone : 2623 1716, 2623 7669 Fax : 2624 5364 
E-mail: nsshetty_co@yahoo.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of Tivoli Construction Limited

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Tivoli Construction 
Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiary {the Holding Company and its Subsidiary 
together referred to as "the Group") which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st 
March, 2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the consolidated Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as "the consolidated financial statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies 
Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with 
the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") specified under section 133 of the Act and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the group 
as at 31st March, 2024, and Loss including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in 
equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion •*

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 
143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are 
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules 
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period; These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon. Based on the circumstances and facts of the Audit, there are no key audit 
matters to be reported.
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Compan/s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other 
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and 
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of 
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this 
regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) 
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance, total 
comprehensive Income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group 
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS 
specified under section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is also 
responsible for ensuring accuracy of the records including financial information considered 
necessary for the preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, in terms of the 
provisions of the Act, the respective Board of Directors / management of the companies included 
in the Group are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing and 
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These financial statements have 
been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Board of 
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
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assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on 
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment 
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, 
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, 
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists 
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required 
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the 
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
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because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the 
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's 
Report) Order, 2020 (the "Order"/"CARO") issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information 
and explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and 
its subsidiary included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which 
reporting under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse 
remarks in these CARO reports.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Group so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. Consolidated Financial Statements dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books 
of account.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS 
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of Holding Company 
and Subsidiary Company as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, 
none of the directors of Group Company are disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
Holding Company and it's Subsidiary Company and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure "A".

g. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Holding Company and Subsidiary 
Company has not paid/provided remuneration to its Director during the year.

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended in our opinion and to 
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

ii. The Group did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education 
and Protection Fund by the Group.

ETrp
cEm O

*[ iiSow )*
r£,\. Mumbai Jk-i

75



iv. (a) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary whose financial 
statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company 
or any of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures to or in any other persons or 
entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or 
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company or any of such subsidiary ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(b) The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiary, whose financial 
statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the Company or any of such 
subsidiary from any persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company or any of 
such subsidiary, shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures which are companies incorporated in India 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or 
other auditors' notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of the Act, 2014 contain any 
material mis-statement.

v. The Holding Company has neither declared nor paid the dividend during the year. The 
interim dividend declared and paid by the Subsidiary Company during the year is in 
compliance with section 123 of Companies Act, 2013.

vi. Based on our examination which included test checks, the Holding Company and it's 
Subsidiary has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has 
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout 
the year from 4th April, 2023 for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, 
during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature 
being tampered with.

For N S Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRNo.: 0110101W

ft Reg-NO. Y* 
*( 110101W L 
(3\ Mumbai /£>Partner 

M. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 29th May, 2024 
UDIN:24135463BKEJW3553
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Annexure - A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub­
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tivoli Construction 
Limited ("the Holding Company") and its subsidiary company (together referred to as ‘the Group') 
as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of 
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company are 
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of 
its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of the Group based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance 
Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit 
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and 
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the 
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our 
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the Group internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
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and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation 
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in 
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Group has in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls 
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were 
operating effectively as at 31st March, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting 
criteria established by the Group considering the essential components of internal control stated 
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For N S Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRNo.: 0110101W

c<o; Firm O
Reg. No.

*1 110101W jco 
Mumbai /$•>

(
&

&Ronit Shetty 
Partner 
M. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date : 29th May, 2024
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CIN: L45200MHI985PLC037365

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024

Rs. In ’OOP
As at

31st March 
2024

As at
31st March 

2023

NoteParticulars
No.

ASSETS
Non-current assets 

’ Property, Plant & Equipments 
Financial assets:

Loans

Other financial assets

Tax assets (net)
Total non-current assets

3 28.39 45.47

4 8,300.00

239.00
49.71

8,300.00
239.00

12.62

5
6

8,617.10 8,597.09

Current assets 
Financial assets

Cash and Cash equivalents 
Other balances with Banks 
Other financial assets

Total current assets

7 1,382.18 
4,800 00 

10,964.00

1,425.25
5,850.00

10,333.56

8

9

17,146.18 17,608.81

Total Assets 25,763.28 26,205.90

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity

10Equity Share Capital 
Other Equity

Total Equity

5,000.00
20,678.62

5,000.00
21,122.6211

25,678.62 26,122.62

Liabilities
Non-current liabilites 
Deferred Tax Liabilities 
Total non-current liabilities

12 0.89 1.02
0.89 1.02

Current liabilities
Financial liabilites

Other financial liabilites 13 72.21
11,56

70.70
11.5614Provisions

Total current liabilities 83.77 82.26

Total equity and fiabilities 25,763.28 26,205.90

1 to 32
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

As per our report of even date

For N. S. Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. - HOlOlUj:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

Anita Raheja^ Rakesh Desai 
Director Director
DIN:00306794 DIN: 00152982

*7 Reg.No.*1 no^OlW J<oisaf
p

i

Rohit Shetty 
Partner
Mem. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date:

/ p'VI I-A A
TanujaSKaTWa 
Company Secretary2 9 MAY 2024
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CIN: L45200MH1985PLC037365

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

Rs. In ’OOP
Year Ended 
31st March 

2023

Note Year Ended 
31st March 2024

Particulars No.

Income
Revenue from operations 
Other income

Total income

645.0015
16 1,027.49 1,147.55

1,672.49 1,147.55

Expenses

Cost of goods sold 
Employee benefit expenses 
Depreciation expenses 
Other expenses

Total Expenses

17 669.50

18 270.00 360.00

3 17.08 6.28

19 833.50 813.88
1,790.08 1,180.16

Profit before exceptional items and Tax '

Exceptional items - Profit/(loss)

Profit before Tax 
Tax Expense

Income Tax 
Deferred tax

Tax in respect of earlier years

Profit after Tax

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that may not be redasified to the statement of profit and loss

Total Other comprehensive income, net of tax

(117.58) (32.61)

(117.58) (32.61)

325.92
(0.13)

253.79
1.02

(443.38) (287.42)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year (443.38) (287.42)

Earnings per share (of Rs 10 each):

Basic

Diluted . •

(0.89)
(0.89)

(0.57)

(0.57)

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial 
statements 1 to 32

As per our report of even date

For N. S. Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. - 110

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

'(toy Firm 

*[ noiowi Anita Raheja 
Director

□IN: 00306794 DIN: 00152982

OXY
Rakesh Desai 
DirectorRohit Shetty It 

Partner *

Mem. No. 135463

Place: Mumbai 
Date:: 2 9 MAY 2024 Tanuja Sharma 

Company Secretary
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
CIN: L45200MH198SPLC037365 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024

Rs. In '000
Particulars(• 2023-24 2022-23

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Profit before tax 
Adjustments for ;
Depreciation
Interest income .

(117.58) (32.61)

17.08
(1,027.49)

6.28
(1,147,55)

(1,010.42) (1,141,27)
(1,173.88)Operating Profit before working capital changes (1,128.00)

Changes in :
Trade and other receivables 
Trade and other payables 1.51 1.51 2.80 2.80
Cash generated from operations (1,126.49)

(363.01)
(1,171.08)

Direct Taxes (Net of Refunds) (253.28)
Net cash flow from operating activities (1,489.50) (1,424.36)

B CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investments in Bank Deposits (having original maturity of more 
than three months)

1,050.00 1,425.00

Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipments 
Interest received

(51.75)
433.47397.06

Net cash flow from investing activities 1,447.06 1,806.72

C CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid (0.62)

Net cash flow from financing activities (0.62)

NET CHANGES IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (43.07) 382.36

1,042.89CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE START OF THE YEAR 1,425.25

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR 1,382.18 1,425.25

As per our report of even date
For N. S. Shetty &Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. - 110101W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

Firm \<?\ 
Reg. No. \V 

*{ noioiw J to 
Mumbai/^

Anita Raheja 
Director 
DIN:00306794

r,
Rakesh Desai
Director
DIN:00152982

it Shetty
Partner
Mem. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 2 9 MAY 2024 Tanuja Sharma 

Company Secretary
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION ITO 
CIN: L45200HH1985PLC03736S 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Rs. In *000

a) Equity share capital 
AS at 1st April, 2022
Changes in the equity share capital during the year
As at 31st March 2023
Changes in the equity share capital dunng the year
As at 31st March 2024

5,000.00

5,000.00

5.000.00

Rs. In '000b) Other equity
Reserves and surplus

Capital
reserve

Ca pita I 
redemption 

reserve

Reserve 
Fund of RBI 
Act, 1954

General
reserve

Retained
earnings

Particulars Total

Balance as at April 1, 2022
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive Income far the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Allocations/Appropriations
Transferred (to) / from Retained Earnings

495.00 1.00 2,85C 39 3,572.50 14,391.15
(267.42)

21,410.04

(287.42)

(287.42) (287.42)

20.00 (20.00)
20,00 (20.00)

Balance as at March 31, 2023 495.00 1.00 2,850.39 3,692.50 14,063.73 21,122.62

Balance as at April 1, 2023
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
Total comprehensive income for the year 
Allocations/Appropriations
Dividend paid
Transferred (to) / from Retained Earnings

495.00 1.00 2,850.39 3,692.50 14,083.73
(443.38)

21,122 62 
<443.38)

(443.38) (443.38)

0.62 0.62
20.00 (20.00)
20.00 (19.38) 062

Balance as at March 31, 2024 495.00 1.00 2,650.39 3(7l2.S0 13,620.98 20,678.62

Nature & Purpose of Reserve 
(a) Capital reserve

The Group recognises profit and loss on purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments to capital reserve.

UO Capital redemption reserve
As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption reserve is created when company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities 
premium. A sum equal to the nominal value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve Is utilised in 
accordance with the provisions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

<C) Reserve fund of RBI Act, 1954
The Company has created a Reserve Fund in terms of Section 45*1C(1) of Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and now It Is not required to be 
registered, accordingly no further transfer is made

<d) General reserve
The general reserve is a free reserve which is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. As 
the general reserve is created by a transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income.

<«) Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the amount of accumulated earnings of the Company.

As per our report of even date 
For N. s. Sherry B Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. - 110101'

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

*1 *09i0iw 

SV Mumbai /*,

TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

Anrta Raheja ^ Rakesh Desai
Director 
DIN: 00306794

T>-

Director
DIN: 0Partner

Mem. No. 135463
Place: Mumbai

2 9 MAY 20Date:
Tanuja Sharma 
Company Secretary
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1: Corporate Information:

TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD (the "Company") and it's subsidiary (together referred to as 'the 
Group'), is a public limited company incorporated in India and has its registered office situated at 
4th Floor, Raheja Chambers, Linking Road and Main Avenue, Santacruz (West) Mumbai 400054. 
The Group is primarily engaged in the business of construction and providing loans.

Note 2: Basis of Preparation, Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements, Material 
Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

(«) Compliance with IND AS
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian 
Accounting Standard (hereinafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as prescribed under Section 133 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 (the 'Act') read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended, and other relevant provisions of the Act.

(ii) Basis of preparation
(a) These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, 

on the accrual basis of accounting. The accounting policies have been applied consistently 
over all the periods presented in financial statements.

(b) Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for 
goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date.

(c) Current Assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realised within 1 year 
and Current Liabilities do not include items which are due after 1 year, the period of 1 year 
being reckoned from the reporting date.

(Hi) Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 
(a) Subsidiary
Subsidiary is an entity (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The 
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns 
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its 
power to direct the relevant activities of that entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from 
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.

The Group combines the financial statements of the parent and its subsidiary line by line 
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income and expenses. Intra-Group 
transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between entities within the 
Group are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides 
evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Non-controlling interests in the results 
and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and 
Loss, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Balance Sheet 
respectively.

(b) Capital Reserve
Capital reserve comprises the portion of the purchase price for an acquisition that 
lower the Group's share in the identifiable assets, calculated on the date of 
acquisition.

[ 110101W L
k%\ Mumbai /S)
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(iv) Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with the recognition and 
measurement principles of Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions, that affect the reported balances of assets and liabilities, disclosures relating to 
contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of income 
and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments 
in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in 
the financial statements pertain to:

(a) Impairment testing: The recoverable amount of cash generating units is higher of value- 
in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The calculation involves use of significant estimates and 
assumptions which include turnover and earnings multiples, growth rates and net margins 
used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rate, and future economic 
and market conditions.

(b) Income Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is regarded as 
probable that deductible temporary differences can be realized. The Company estimates 
deferred tax assets and liabilities based on current tax laws and rates and in certain cases, 
business plans, including management's expectations regarding the manner and timing of 
recovery of the related assets. Changes in these estimates may affect the amount of deferred 
tax liabilities or the valuation of deferred tax assets and thereby the tax charges in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss.

Provision for tax liabilities require judgements on the interpretation of tax legislation, 
developments in case law and the potential outcomes of tax audits and appeals which may 
be subject to significant uncertainty. Therefore the actual results may vary from expectations 
resulting in adjustments to provisions, the valuation of deferred tax assets, cash tax 
settlements and therefore the tax charge in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(v) Material Accounting Policies:

(a) Revenue recognition:
(i) Income from operations
Revenue from operations is accounted on accrual, is net of indirect taxes, returns and 
discounts. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

(ii) Interest:
Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.

(b) Taxation
(i) Provision for current taxation has been made in accordance with the Income Tax laws 

applicable to the assessment year.
(ii) Deferred tax is recognized on timing difference being the difference between taxable 

incomes and accounting income that originates in one period and is capable of reversal in 
one or more subsequent periods. Where there is unabsorbed depreciation, or carry forward 
losses, deferred tax assets are recognised only if there is virtual certainty of realisation of

/f^f^^^C^such assets.
r COi^wlinimum Alternate Tax ("MAT") credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the

Yl0i*0^ )j2nx*:en* *l"iere's convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during
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the specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying 
amount is written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence that the 
Company will be liable to pay normal-income tax during the specified period.

(c) Impairment of assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date, to assess any indication 
of impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated. 
An impairment loss is recognized wherever the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its 
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is greater of the net selling price or value in use. In 
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value, 
based on an appropriate discounting factor.

A previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reversed depending on changes in 
ci rcumstances.

(d) Provisions, Contingent LiabiHties and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a binding present obligation. This may be either 
legal because it derives from a contract, legislation or other operation of law because the Company 
created valid expectations on the part of the third parties by accepting certain responsibilities. To 
record such an obligation it must be probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made for the amount of the obligation.

(e) Statement of Cash Flows
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ (loss) before tax is adjusted 
for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future 
cash receipts or payments. Cash flow for the year is classified by operating, investing and financing 
activities.

(f) Earnings per Share
Basic earning per share is computed, by dividing the profit or loss after tax by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is 
computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential 
equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic 
earnings per share.

(g) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

(I) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification 
of its financial assets at initial recognition.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value. However, trade 
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at transaction 
price.

Classification:
• Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash comprises cash/cheques on hand and demand 

deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances with an original maturity of 
three months or less from the date of acquisition, highly liquid investment that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of

• C'Cs
XNN,

bjj \f(9ViDebt Instruments - The Company classifies its debt instruments as subsequently 
easured at amortised cost, fair value through Other Comprehensive Income or fair value

changes in value.
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through profit or loss based on its business model for managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost if these financial assets 
are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest. Interest, income from these financial assets is 
included as a part of the Company's income in the Statement of Profit and Loss using 
the effective interest rate method.

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income f FVOCI^
Financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive 
Income if these financial assets are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for 
selling the financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of 
principal and interest. Movements in the carrying value are taken through Other 
Comprehensive income, except for the' recognition of impairment gains or losses, 
interest revenue are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in Other 
Comprehensive Income is reclassified from Other Comprehensive Income to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income on such financial assets is included as a 
part of the Company's income in the Statement of Profit and loss using the effective 
interest rate method.

(Hi) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss fFVTPL^
Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. A gain or loss on such debt instrument that is subsequently 
measured at FVTPL and is not part of a hedging relationship as well as interest income 
is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

(II) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are recognised when, and only when, the Company becomes a party to the 
contractual provisions of the financial instrument. The Company determines the classification 
of its financial liabilities at initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities, which are not at fair value through 
proft or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial recognition.

Subsequent measurement
After initial recognition, financial liabilities that are not carried at fair value through profit or 
loss are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains 
and losses are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are 
derecognised, and through the amortisation process.

De-recoanition
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same 
lender on substantially different terms,'or the terms of an existing liability are substantially 
modifed, such an exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying 
amounts is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

o^o. i .
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(III) Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses, at each rep.orting .'date, whether a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. Ind AS-l;09,on^Financial Instruments, requires expected credit 
losses to be measured through a loss allowance.

<b;
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rs. In '000Note - 3: Property, Plant & Equipments
Particulars TotalComputer
Gross carrying amount 
As at 1 April 2022
Additions
Disposals/ discards/ adjustments
Balance as at 31 March 2023

51.75 51.750

51.75 51.75
As at 1 April 2023
Additions
Disposals/discards/adjustments
Balance as at 31 March 2024

51.7551.75

51.75 51.75

Accumulated depreciation 
As at 1 April 2022
Depreciation for the year 
Disposals/ discards/ adjustments
Balance as at 31 March 2023

6.28 6.28

6.286.28
As at 1 April 2023
Depreciation for the year 
Disposals/ discards/ adjustments
Balance as at 31 March 2024

6.28
17.08

6.28
17.08

23.36 23.36

Carrying Value 
As at 31 March 2023
As at 31 March 2024

45.47 45.47
28.39 28.39
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rs. In '000
As at

31st March 
2024

As at
31st March 

2023
Particulars

Note 4 Non Current Loans (Unsecured)
Loans Receivable - considered good
loans receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 
Loans receivables - credit impaired

8,300.00 8,300.00

8,300.00 8,300.00

Note 5 Other non-current financial assets
Deposits with banks 239.00 239.00

239.00 239.00

Note 6 Tax assets (Net)
Income Tax assets (net)
Opening balance for the year
Less : Tax payable for the year 
Add : Taxes paid
Less: Refund Received during the year 
Add: Adjustment for earfier years tax provision
Closing balance

12.62
(325.92)
366.94

(3.93)

13.13
(253.79)
263.54
(10.26)

49.71 12.62

Note 7 Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Balances with bank in current account

0.45 0.26
1,424.991,381.74

1,382.18 1,425.25

Note 8 Other Balances with Banks
Term deposits with original matuhty for 
more than 3 months but less than 12 months

4,800.00 5,850.00

4,800.00 5,850.00

Note 9 Other financial assets
Interest receivable 10,964.00 10,333.56

10.964.00 10.333.56
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
Rs. In '000

As at
31st March 

2024

As at
31st March 

2023
Particulars

Note 10 Equity Share Capital

a) Authorised Capital

5,00,000 (5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.lQ each _ 5,000.00 5,000.00

b) Issued, share capital

5,00,000 (5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 5,000.005,000.00

c) Subscribed and fully paid up

5,00,000 (5,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each .• 5,000.00 5,000.00

5,000.00 5,000.00

d) Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginng and at the end of the year

As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Rs. In '000 Rs. In OOPNo. of shares No. of shares

At the beginng of the year ■ 5,00,000 5,000.00 5,00,000 5,000.00

At the end of the year 5,00,000 5,000.00 5,00,000 5,000.00

e) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares

As at 31st March 2023 ' -As at 31st March 2024

% of holdingNo. of shares % of holdingNo. of shares
Anita D Raheia 50,030 10.01% 50,030 10.01%
Progressive Star Finance Private LTD 1,04,500 20.90% 63,900 13.78%
Kamla C Wadhwa . 1,33,300 26.66% 1,23,200 24.64%

Note 11 Other equity

(a) Capital reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 495.00 495.00

(b) Capital redemption reserve 
As per Last Balance Sheet •

1.00 1.00

t
(c) Reserve fund in terms of Section 45-IC(l) of Reserve Bank of India, 1934 

As per Last Balance Sheet 2,850.39 2,850.39

(d) General reserve 
Opening balance

Add: Transfer from Retained earnings 
Closing balance

3,692.50
20.00

3,672.50
20.00

3,712.50 3,692.50

(e) Retained earnings 
Opening Balance 14,083.73 14,391.15

Add: Net Profit/(loss) after tax transferred from statement of profit and loss 
Less: Dividend paid

Transfer to General Reserve 
Closing balance

(443.38) (287.42)
'0:62

. .20.00 20,00
,1-3,619:73 ’> 14,083.73

!
•• i v - 20,678.62' : 21,122.62\
sS r \ * i * \ t

v.

..

»

*
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD 
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

f) Details of Equity Shares held by Holding Company/Promoters
As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st March 2023

Name of Shareholder No. of 
Shares 

held

°/o Held % of change 
during the 
year.

No. of Shares 
held

% of change 
during the 
year

•Vo Held

MRS KAMLA WADHWA 2.02%1,33,300 26.66% 1,23,200 24.64% NIL
MRS ANITA D RAHEJA NIL NIL50,030 10.01% 50,030 10.01%
MR. CHATURBHLO WADHWA NIL NIL200 0.04% 200 0.04%
MR. BHAGWANDAS S RAHEJA NIL NIL10,100 2.02% 10,100 2.02%
BHAGWANDAS SEWARAM HUF NIL NIL20,100 4.02% 20,100 4.02%
DR. BEHARILALS. RAHEJA -2.02% NIL0.00% 10,100 2.02%

-4.02% NILDR. BEHARILAL SEWARAM HUF 0.00% 20,100 4.02%
NIL NILMRS SHEELA H RA3ANI 200 0.04% 200 0.04%
NIL NILMRS. SHOBHA RAJPAL 100 0.02% 100 0.02%
NIL NILMR NARESH B AHUJA 100 0.02% 100 0.02%
NIL NILMR RABINDER G AHUJA 0.02% 100 0.02%100
NIL NILMR. BULCHAND G AHUJA 100 0.02% 100 0.02%

NILMRS ASHA S AHU3A NIL 100 0.02%100 0.02%
NIL NILMRS SAROI R AHU1A 100 0.02% 100 0.02%
NIL NILMRS. INDRA B AHUJA 100 0.02% 100 0.02%

NILNILMRS SHANTI B RAHEJA 10,100 2.02% 10,100 2.02%
NIL0.00%VIJAY B RAHEJA 16,900 3.38% 16,900 3.38%
NIL0.00% 20,100 4.02%VIJAY B RAHEJA OF K.B TRUST 20,100 4.02%

-3.00% NILSONAL PROPERTIES P LTD 15,000 3.00%0.00%
BRINDABAN BUILDERS PRIVATE 

LIMITED
11,300 2.26%11,300 2.26% NILNIL

-0.10% NILSHIRAZ BUILDERS P LTD 0.00% 500 0.10%
NILB.S.R. GRIHNIRMAN P LTD NIL 400 0.08%400 0.08%
NILNIL 600 0.12%BANDRA CONSTRUCTION P LTD 600 0.12%
NILBANDRA PROPERTIES P LTD NIL 15,000 3.00%15,000 3.00%

NIL NILBEAU RIVAGE ESTATES P LTD 500 0.10% 500 0.10%
NIL NILG.V.R BUILDERS P LTD 400 0.08% 400 0.08%
NIL NILLAVINA ESTATES PVT LTD 400 0.08% 400 0.08%

NILNIL 500 0.10%LOUISIANA ESTATES P LTD 500 0.10%
NILNIL 400 0.08%QUEENS CONSTRUCTION P LTD 400 0.08%

1,500 0.30%RAJDEEP RAHEJA EXPORTS PVT LTD 1,500 0.30% NILNIL
NILNIL 200 0.04%S.B.R ESTATES & FINANCE P LTD 200 0.04%
NILNIL 0.04%SEA SIDE PROPERTIES PVT LTD 200 0.04% 200
NILNIL 15,000 3.00%SUNANDA CONSTRUCTION P LTD 15,000 3.00%
NILNIL 10,000 2.00%VIJAY RAHEJA BUILDERS P LTD 10,000 2.00%

10,200 2.04%PEBBLE BAY DEVELOPERS P LIMITED 10,200 2.04% NILNIL

c.<b; O

&Y Mumbai /*>
★ i
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Rs. In 000
As at

31st March 
2024

As at
31st March 

2023
Particulars

Note 12 Deferred tax liability
On account of depreciation 0.89 1.02

0.89 1.02

Note 13 Other current financial liabilities
Statutory liabilities 
Liability for expenses

17.70
54.51

16.18
54.52

72.21 70,70

Note 14 Provisions
Contingent Provision against standard assets 11.56 11.56

11.56 11,56
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
Rs. In '000

Year Ended 
31st March 

2024

Year Ended 
31st March 

2023
Particulars

Note 15 Revenue from operations

Sale of Goods 645.00

645.00

Note 16 Other Income
Interest income

On deposit with Banks 
On Others

On Income Tax Refund

238.80 358.65
788.50 788.50

0,19 0.41
1,027.49 1,147.55

Note 17 Cost of goods sold
Opening Stock 
Add: Purchases 669.50

669.50
Less: Closing Stock

669.50

Note 18 Employee Benefit Expenses

Salaries & wages 270.00 360.00
270.00 360.00

Note 19 Other Expenses
Advertisement expenses

Annual custody fees

Bank Charges

Filing fees

Listing fees

Rates and taxes

Legal and professional

Auditors remuneration (Refer note below)

Directors' sitting fees

Miscellaneous expenses

License S Software expenses

110.59 90.00
9.00 9.00
0.74 0.59
9.21 5.01

325.00 300.00

105.06103.32
183.74 134.95
79.50 79.50

3.75 4.00

0.771.41
85.007.25

833.50 813.88

Auditors' remuneration comprises

Statutory Audit

Others

59.5059.50
20.0020.00

79.5079.50

mm<sf Ocd/ Firm
Ho. **‘1

CO*
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« TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note-20 Earnings Per Share (EPS!
31st March. 2024 31st March. 2023

Basic & Diluted
Net profit / (loss) for the year (Rs. In ’000) 
Weighted average number of equity shares 
Par value cer share
Earnings per share in Rs.

(443-38)
5,00,000

(287.42)
5,00,000

10 10
f0.891 (0.571

Note-21 Dues to Micro & Small Enterprise

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the ’’Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006" is based 
on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act, as per 
the intimation received from them on requests made by the Company. There are no due/overdue principal amounts / interest 
payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are no delays in payment made to 
such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this 
regard in respect of payment made during the year or on balance brought forward from previous year.

Note-22 Segment information
The nature of activities of the Company is such that there are neither reportable nor geographical segment m terms of Ind AS 
108 on "Operating Segments".

Note-23 Related Party Disclosure

Key Managerial Personnel

Bulchand Ahuja 
Anita Raheja 
Sagar Rupani 
Rakesh Desai

Director
Director
Director
Director

Pinal
Tanuja Sharma

Company Secretary upto 04/01/24 
Company Secretary w.e.f.30/04/24

Transactions with Related parties during the year
Particulars 2023-24 2022-23
Remuneration to

Pinal Parekh 270.00 360.00

Directors Sitting Fees
Bulchand Ahuja 
Anita Raheja 
Sagar Rupani 
Rakesh Desai

0.25
1.251.25

1.25 1.25
1.25 1.25

Note-24 Contingent liabilities
The Company does not have any contingent liability as on the Balance Sheet date.

Note-25 In the opinion of management, Current Assets, Loans and Advances have a relizable value in the ordinary course of business 
not less than the amount at which thay are stated in the balance sheet and provision for ail known liabilities and doubtful 
assets have been made.

Note-26 The Company has made a provision on its standard assets as per Reserve Bank of India Circular no. 207 dated January 17, 
2011 and reflected the same under Current Provisions.

Note-27 The Group has only interest income. Considering the same, it has no material impact on the revenue due to COV1D-19. Group 
is also expecting their assets to be realized at their values reflecting in books.

Note-28 During the year the company does not have any transaction with the Strike off Companies.

Note-29 Irspite of concerted efforts by the Company, the Company has not been able to find a suitable canditate and hence the
position of CFO is still not filled up and hence the provisions of Section 203 (1) (lii) of the Companies Act 2013 is not complied 
with. The Company is still on the look-out and is hopeful of finding the right candidate soon.

Note-30 Additional information as required of General Instructions for preparation of Financial Statement (other than already disclosed 
above) are either Nil or not applicable.
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TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements

Note-32 Disclosure of ratio
Sr. Particulars Numerator Denominator For the year 

2023-24
For the year 

2022-23
«/o Remarks for 

variance more than 
25%

No. Variance

1 Current Ratio Current Asset Current Liability 204.68 214.06 -4.38
2 Debt-Equity Ratio Borrowings Shareholder's

Fund
NIL NIL

3 Debt Service Coverage 
Ratio

Net profit after tax 
+ Non-cash 
operating Expenses 
+ Interest + other 
non cash 
adjusment

Interest +- 
Principal 
repayment of 
Borrowing

ML NIL

4 Return on Equity Ratio Net profit after Tax Average
shareholder's fund

-1.71 -1.0S -56.44 Due to increase in loss 
during the year

5 Inventory turnover ratio Cost of goods sold Average
Inventory

NIL NIL

6 Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

Revenue from 
Operations

Average trade 
receivables

NIL NIL

7 Trade payables turnover 
ratio '

Purchase of Service 
and other expenses

Average trade 
payables

21.03 11.74 79.10

8 Net capital turnover ratio Total Income Working Capital ' 0.10 0.07 49.71 Due to Increase in total 
Income during the year

9 Net profit ratio Net profit after Tax Total Income ■ -26.51 -25.05 -5.84 Due to increase in loss
during the year______
Due to loss during the 
year

10 Return on Capital 
employed

Profit before tax 
and finance costs

Net Worth - 
Deffered tax

-0.46 -0.12 -266.82

Asssts
11 Return on investment Income generated 

from investments
Average invested 

funds in 
investment

NIL NIL

As per our report of even date
For N. S. Shetty & Co. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. - 110101W

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of 
TIVOLI CONSTRUCTION LTD

i ^ )s Anita Raheja 
Director 
DIN:00306794

*
Rakesh Desal
Director
DIN:00152962

it ShittyR<
Partner
Mem. No. 135463 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: 12 9 MAY 2024 Tanuja 

Company-Secretary
ma
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